

Walden University ScholarWorks

Walden Dissertations and Doctoral Studies

Walden Dissertations and Doctoral Studies Collection

2023

Leadership Strategies Supply Chain Managers Use in Adopting Innovative Technology

Bukola Loveth Olowo Walden University

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.waldenu.edu/dissertations

Part of the Business Commons, and the Databases and Information Systems Commons

This Dissertation is brought to you for free and open access by the Walden Dissertations and Doctoral Studies Collection at ScholarWorks. It has been accepted for inclusion in Walden Dissertations and Doctoral Studies by an authorized administrator of ScholarWorks. For more information, please contact ScholarWorks@waldenu.edu.

Walden University

College of Management and Human Potential

This is to certify that the doctoral study by

Bukola Olowo

has been found to be complete and satisfactory in all respects, and that any and all revisions required by the review committee have been made.

Review Committee Dr. Gregory Uche, Committee Chairperson, Doctor of Business Administration Faculty

Dr. Franz Gottleib, Committee Member, Doctor of Business Administration Faculty

Dr. Alexandre Lazo, University Reviewer, Doctor of Business Administration Faculty

Chief Academic Officer and Provost Sue Subocz, Ph.D.

Walden University 2023

Abstract

Leadership Strategies Supply Chain Managers Use in Adopting Innovative Technology

by

Bukola Olowo

MS, Heriot-Watt University 2015

BS, University of Ibadan, 2009

Doctoral Study Submitted in Partial Fulfillment

of the Requirements for the Degree of

Doctor of Business Administration

Walden University

June 2023

Abstract

Supply chain managers face challenges when adopting new technologies to remain competitive and satisfy consumer demands involving expedited delivery of food and services. Supply chain managers who fail to adopt new technology have a decreased propensity to stay competitive. Grounded in the transformation leadership theory, the purpose of this qualitative multiple-case study was to explore leadership strategies supply chain managers use in adopting innovative technology. Participants were six supply chain managers who successfully used leadership strategies to adopt new innovative technology. Sources for data collection were semistructured interviews, company archival documents, and field notes. Research data were analyzed via thematic analysis. Four themes emerged: people management, communication, leadership style and relationship, and coaching and empowerment. A key recommendation is for supply chain managers to implement employee training that increases knowledge of technology and helps drive the adoption of innovative technology. Implications for positive social change include the potential for supply chain managers to create job opportunities, provide social amenities and welfare, and support the economic development of regional communities.

Leadership Strategies Supply Chain Managers Use in Adopting Innovative Technology

by

Bukola Olowo

MS, Heriot-Watt University, 2015

BS, University of Ibadan, 2009

Doctoral Study Submitted in Partial Fulfillment

of the Requirements for the Degree of

Doctor of Business Administration

Walden University

June 2023

Dedication

I dedicate this doctoral study to my mother, Rebecca Becky Olowo. You are my inspiration! I would also like to dedicate this dissertation in memory of my father, the late Bola Olowo, and my siblings, who have encouraged and supported me to pursue my dreams despite adversity and never to give up. Thank you for not only believing in me but for always being there to support my academic endeavors and goals. This accomplishment results from the unconditional love you have shown me, and trust that I will always make the right decision. Thank you for instilling in me the drive and desire to overcome any challenge and obstacle I face with my faith in God. I know now more than ever that all things are possible with God. I appreciate your support and love forever and always. I dedicate this work to my wonderful niece Selma for putting a smile on my face even when stressed. I would also like to thank my best friend Anthony Igboekwe for your support and encouragement. You all have been my top cheerleaders.

Acknowledgments

I would like to first thank my Lord and Savior, Jesus Christ, for blessing me abundantly and beyond measure. I would like to thank my chair, Dr. Gregory Uche, for his exceptional guidance and for being the driving force in my doctoral journey by ensuring I learn and deliver quality output. Thank you to Dr. Franz Michael Gottlieb your support was so crucial to the success of my doctoral study as your guidance helped me explore my study further by encouraging me to dig deeper. Lastly, thank you, Dr. Alexandre Lazo, for reviewing my research and the DBA program director Dr. Gail Miles. I would like to thank you all for setting the standards for achieving excellence through academic rigor, constructive feedback, and consistency.

List	of Tables	iv
Sect	ion 1: Foundation of the Study	.1
]	Background of the Problem	.1
]	Problem Statement	.3
]	Purpose Statement	.3
1	Nature of the Study	.4
]	Research Question	.6
	Interview Questions	6
(Conceptual Framework	.6
]	Definitions of Terms	.7
1	Assumptions, Limitations, and Delimitations	.9
	Assumptions	9
	Limitations	9
	Delimitations	10
ç	Significance of the Study	10
	Contribution to Business Practice	10
	Implications for Social Change	11
1	A Review of the Professional and Academic Literature	12
	Transformational Leadership Theory	13
	Related and Contrasting Theories to Transformational Leadership Theory	20
	Leadership Effect on Organizational Performance	24

Table of Contents

Leadership Strategies	
Technological Innovations for Supply Chain Managers	29
Supply Chain Process and Management	37
Transition and Summary	45
Section 2: The Project	47
Purpose Statement	47
Role of the Researcher	48
Participants	51
Research Method and Design	52
Method	53
Research Design	54
Population and Sampling	56
Ethical Research	57
Data Collection Instruments	60
Data Collection Technique	62
Data Organization Techniques	64
Data Analysis Technique	66
Reliability and Validity	68
Reliability	68
Validity	70
Transition and Summary	72
Section 3: Application to Professional Practice and Implications for Change	73

Introduction	73
Presentation of the Findings	74
Theme 1: People Management	75
Theme 2: Communication	81
Theme 3: Leadership Style and Relationship	86
Theme 4: Coaching and Empowerment	91
Relating Study Findings to Transformational Leadership Theory	95
Applications to Professional Practice	97
Implications for Social Change	100
Recommendations for Action	101
Recommendations for Further Study	102
Reflections	103
Summary and Study Conclusions	104
References	105
Appendix A: Interview Protocol	143
Appendix B: Letter of Invitation	145
Appendix C: CITI Certification	147

List of Tables

Table 1.	. Summary of Literatu	e Review Sources	1.	3
----------	-----------------------	------------------	----	---

Section 1: Foundation of the Study

Globalization changed consumer buying behaviors, compelling business environments to adjust to remain competitive (Nordhagen et al., 2021). Organizational business executives fail to successfully implement technologically innovative techniques, resulting in a loss in market share, human resources, profitability, and decreased corporate change initiatives (Dubey et al., 2019). Quick adaptation of software applications in the supply chain could enable businesses to compete as technology drives new competitive business environments. Supply chain managers should adopt appropriate leadership strategies for implementing innovative technologies to survive in the global market and enhance their business sustainability.

Background of the Problem

The global supply chain disruptions in the United States distorted the production of goods and services, resulting in labor shortages (Meier & Pinto, 2020). According to Meier and Pinto (2020), output in sectors with high exposure to intermediate goods imported from China was 16% lower than usual. COVID-19 disrupted the supply chain industry, resulting in chaos across global networks and slowing economic growth. Supply chain managers' lack of appropriate leadership strategies to implement innovative technologies affected the supply chain network, resulting in longer production times and higher employee turnover, thereby causing adverse economic impacts (Dubey et al., 2019). Nordhagen et al. (2021) stated 94.3% of firms experienced decreased sales, resulting in negative financial impacts on their supply chain operations, with 54% of businesses changing their product prices due to the pandemic. The demand for food, produce, and household items increased by 20%, causing a change in purchasing patterns as consumers spent less on high-cost healthy foods (Cakır et al., 2020).

Supply chain organizations contribute to economic growth as well as environmental and societal sustainability. To improve the welfare of society, achieve long-term sustainability, contribute to growth, and reduce business risks, supply chain managers should advance their business environments with technology (Mangla et al., 2020). Quick adaptation of software applications in the supply chain could enable businesses to compete as technology drives the new competitive business environment. According to McCrea (2020), organizational leadership plays a crucial role in terms of long-term sustainability and improving employment rates, living conditions, and socioeconomic growth, hence the need for appropriate leadership strategies. Business and organizational leaders need to adopt appropriate leadership strategies for long-term sustainability.

Organizational leaders create a dynamic plan by analyzing the internal and external environment, monitoring trends, and adapting to a continually changing environment. Supply chain business managers' leadership strategies are essential in terms of achieving corporate objectives because leader tasks and relationship behaviors determine sustainability, employee retention, and improved standard of living (Xu & Wang, 2019). Shou et al. (2021) urged supply chain managers to build operational innovation to effectively overcome supply chain challenges and achieve superior performance by combining traceability and supply chain coordination. This study involved exploring leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in terms of adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment.

Problem Statement

Supply chain managers face challenges when adopting new technologies to remain competitive and satisfy consumer demands involving expedited delivery of food and services (Andelkovic & Radosavljevic, 2018). Business organizations with delayed and disrupted supply chain processes experienced approximately 40% lower stock returns against industry standards for 2 years (Lucker et al., 2019). The general business problem was that supply chain managers needed to adopt innovative technologies in response to new trends to gain a competitive advantage in the dynamic emerging business environment. The specific business problem was that some supply chain managers lacked leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies to stay competitive in a rapidly changing business world.

Purpose Statement

The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. The targeted population was six managers from different supply chain companies in Atlanta, Georgia who have successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies in their companies. Social change implications of this study included providing new strategies to supply chain managers involving adopting new technologies to improve consumers' welfare. A reliable supply chain with quality output could improve the lives of consumers. Supply chain businesses expanding into new markets could increase economic value by creating new employment opportunities for communities, leading to a better quality of life.

Nature of the Study

Researchers conduct their study using quantitative, qualitative, and mixed methods to yield fresh perspectives on emerging research problems (Strijker et al., 2020). Researchers select appropriate methods based on the research problem using quantitative, qualitative, or mixed methodologies (Rutberg & Bouikidis, 2018; Seeram, 2019). The quantitative research method involves examining a phenomenon with precise measurements via a controlled design to understand relationships between variables (Zyphur & Pierides, 2020). According to Lanka et al. (2021), qualitative research is an inductive, subjective, and interpretive type of methodology for studying individuals and cases in their natural settings. The qualitative research methodology involves multiple data collection techniques such as observations, interviews, and open-ended questionnaires in semistructured settings to review social aspects of studies (Rutberg & Bouikidis, 2018). Researchers use the qualitative method for analyzing descriptive data that are collected during semistructured interviews (Strijker et al., 2020). I used the qualitative method for this study because it was appropriate for probing the research problem with a broad understanding of the concept through detailed analysis of participants' perspectives using their own words to draw on their concepts and experiences. Quantitative and mixed methods were not ideal as the purpose of this study was not to analyze empirical data for examining variables, characteristics, relationships,

or hypotheses. Mixed methods involve combining qualitative and quantitative methods (Rutberg & Bouikidis, 2018).

Qualitative designs include case study, ethnographic, phenomenological, and narrative designs which involve exploring free and open communication among participants (Kim et al., 2017; Strijker et al., 2020). According to Ford (2020), researchers use the narrative design to address participants' history, biographical information, and personal human experiences by highlighting their stories. The narrative design was not appropriate for the study because I did not intend to obtain information related to personal histories of participants. Larkin et al. (2018) explained researchers use the phenomenological design to gather information about a participants' lived experiences involving a phenomenon. The phenomenological design was inappropriate for this study because the goal was not to study participants' lived experiences. The case study design enables the researcher to retrieve depth and meaning in context by incorporating multiple sources and evidence (Tomaszewski et al., 2020). Qualitative researchers use the case study design to explore a phenomenon in a real-life setting (Siedlecki, 2020). The case study design was appropriate for exploring and comparing perspectives on leadership strategies that supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies in Atlanta, Georgia. I used a multiple case study design instead of a single case study design because the multiple case study provides a broader discovery of data sources and theoretical evolution of the research questions.

Research Question

What leadership strategies do supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies

Interview Questions

- 1. What leadership strategies do you use as a supply chain manager to adopt innovative technologies?
- 2. What challenges did you encounter as a business manager while implementing the leadership strategies?
- 3. How did you address the challenges you faced?
- 4. How did you implement the leadership strategies you used to adopt innovative technologies?
- 5. How did you measure the effectiveness of the leadership strategies?
- 6. Which of the leadership strategies has been the most effective in the adoption of innovative technologies?
- 7. What additional information would you like to share about the leadership strategies you used to adopt innovative technology successfully?

Conceptual Framework

The transformational leadership theory was the conceptual framework for the proposed study. Burns (1978) stated transformational leaders build relationships and influence their followers to change. Transformational leadership tenets include (a) idealized influence, (b) inspirational motivation, (c) intellectual stimulation, and (d)

individualized consideration (Northouse, 2019). Transformational leaders with idealized attributes act as role models, instilling confidence, and power in their followers (Northouse, 2019). Intellectual stimulation means transformational leaders support their followers by trying new approaches and developing creative problem-solving skills (Northouse, 2019).

Inspirational motivation involves how leaders motivate team members by communicating organizational goals to gain employee buy-in (Northouse, 2019). Individualized consideration refers to leaders who pay attention to their followers' needs by supporting employees (Mohsin, 2020). According to Zaman et al. (2019), project leaders use transformational leadership, flexibility, and visibility to improve project responsiveness and meet escalating commitments for successful project implementation. According to Northouse (2019), employees desire transformational leadership traits with leaders that influence their followers by promoting self-development and innovation, building trust by establishing connection and recognition, leading to motivation, high employee morale, and overall organizational productivity. The transformational leadership theory was suitable for this study as the qualities of the transformational leader, such as inspirational motivation and intellectual stimulation, fosters innovation in an organization.

Definitions of Terms

Disruptive innovations: Technologies that enable new sets of product capabilities that are unique in terms of mainstream technological features that are introduced into an

established industry initially at the bottom and moving up the market, eventually displacing mainstream competitors (Guo et al., 2019).

Innovation strategies: Strategies which are designed to innovate by exploring an organization's internal and external capabilities in order to gain a competitive advantage (Holloway et al., 2021).

Leadership strategies: Different management styles to develop an organization's vision, procedures, and methods, as well as influence organizational members to achieve enhanced performance, growth, and overall success through streamlined processes (Atan et al., 2019).

Supply chain management: Collaboration across an organization's value chain that builds customer and supplier relationships, improving the firm or organization's performance (Benseddik, 2019).

Technology implementation: Integrating new technologies into an organization or community involving operational processes and knowledge of technology with a preimplementation and post-implementation framework in order to successfully sustain the newly integrated technology (Bhise & Sunnapwar, 2019).

Technological Innovation: New or improved products, services, processes, and significant technological changes developed by organizations that are launched into the marketplace (Gyimah, 2020).

Assumptions, Limitations, and Delimitations

Assumptions

I assumed participants gave an honest, truthful, and unbiased response to my research questions. Another assumption was that participants appropriately enunciated their responses to interview questions. I assumed a multiple case study research design was suitable for exploring various leadership strategies that supply chain business leaders use for adopting IT to improve productivity and increase profitability. Finally, I assumed the study sample size accurately represented leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in terms of adopting new innovative technologies to stay competitive and enhance their business sustainability in Atlanta, Georgia.

Limitations

Research limitations can include resource constraints, sample size, and inaccurate application of conceptual frameworks (Harari & Lee, 2021). The study's sample size was a limitation, with restricted access to multiple leaders in different sectors within the supply chain industry. Participants for the study were supply chain leaders who successfully implemented innovative technologies in their business and were reluctant to give detailed information about leadership strategies and technological innovations. The targeted population of six supply chain managers restricted the study findings as the sample size needed did not accurately represent all supply chain managers in Atlanta, Georgia. Third, participants were reluctant to express their strategies for fear of jeopardizing their positions in their organization. Fourth, supply chain managers provided generic responses to interview questions as they needed help understanding the impact of technology on supply chain management.

Delimitations

Researchers acknowledge the existence of delimitations that establishes a framework for quality research findings when investigating a phenomenon. Delimitations involve highlighting the study's objectives, research questions, design, sample alternatives, and the reasons for rejecting them (Theofanidis & Fountouki, 2018). Researchers set limitations or boundaries to ensure the study's aims and objectives are possible to achieve by limiting the scope of the study as it relates to the phenomenon and research design (Theofanidis & Fountouki, 2018). The first delimitation of this study was that no specific leadership strategy generic to the supply chain organizations evaluated could improve the successful adoption of innovative technologies in Atlanta, Georgia. The study explored the individual experience six supply chain managers and the strategies they use in implementing information technology in their organizations. Another delimitation of the study was the location of the participants; because they were in Atlanta, Georgia, which would not allow for the generalization of the findings.

Significance of the Study

Contribution to Business Practice

Findings of this study might contribute to knowledge of leadership strategies that supply chain leaders could adopt when implementing innovative technology. Results of this study might be valuable to organizations by providing a guide on effective leadership strategies for sustaining and deploying innovative technology. Organizations may leverage findings from this research to create guidelines that meet ethical requirements and training initiatives. From this study, I identified leadership strategies that six supply chain managers in Atlanta, Georgia implemented in terms of adopting innovative technology. Successful change initiatives require strategic planning, execution, and employee participation; lack of effective strategies may inhibit adoption within organizations.

Study findings could help business owners improve business practices and help firms thrive in volatile, uncertain, complex, and ambiguous environments by overcoming barriers to implementing and sustaining disruptive innovations. Findings could also give supply chain managers a comprehensive grasp of hurdles affecting the integration of innovative technology. Study results might assist supply chain managers in terms of adopting innovative technology, which could help them improve organizational efficiency and employee work-life balance.

Implications for Social Change

According to Lagumdzija and Ceremida (2019), organizations create shared value between companies and society through stakeholder participation to improve communities' living standards. By adopting successful innovative leadership strategies, supply chain business executives could expand into new markets, make goods available to people, and create new employment opportunities for communities, and societies benefit from transport efficiency, safety, healthcare, and socialization. The study could contribute to social change as an efficient supply chain equalizes goods and services, reducing consumer socioeconomic gaps. Organizations with efficient supply chain processes might improve consumers' lives and increase socioeconomic growth and development.

A Review of the Professional and Academic Literature

Organizations use resources to formulate new ideas and concepts and gain competitive advantages. Organizational business leaders need strategies for successfully implementing innovative technologies to gain competitive advantages (Carreiro & Oliveira, 2019). Supply chain management administrators are under pressure to achieve more productivity and customer-centric supply networks while discovering inventive methods to decrease costs and facilitate growth (Dubey et al., 2019). Business managers are accountable for achieving firm business objectives involving gaining competitive advantages.

This study involved exploring leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in terms of adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. Search keywords and phrases were: *leadership*, *leadership style*, *supply chain*, *transformational leadership*, *transactional leadership theory*, and *technological innovations*. Databases were: ERIC, EBSCOHost, Google Scholar, JSTOR, Multisearch ProQuest, Science Direct, Thoreau, and the Walden University Library. The literature search resulted in 212 peer-reviewed journal articles, four nonpeer-reviewed journals, two government or corporate sites, and seven textbooks. Ninety-two percent of sources used for this literature review were published between 2019 and 2023. In Table 1, I present a summary of literature resources.

Table 1

Reference type	<5 Years	>5 Years	Total
Peer-reviewed journals	216	6	222
Non-peer reviewed journals	4	0	4
Books	7	0	7
Government or corporate sites	2	0	2
Total	225	6	235

Summary of Literature Review Sources

Transformational Leadership Theory

Burns first proposed the transformational leadership theory in 1978 and focused on charismatic qualities such as determination, self-confidence, vision, and moral uplifting. Transformational leadership involves inspiring personnel to work devotedly toward corporate goals (Bass, 1985; Faupel and Süß, 2019). Transformational leaders influence subordinates to achieve superior performance by demonstrating integrity and fairness (Bass, 1985). The four aspects of transformative leadership are idealized influence, charisma, inspirational motivation, intellectual stimulation, and individualized consideration (Northouse, 2019). Idealized influence is a leader's ability to convince followers and be a role model to subordinates (Bass, 1985). According to Northouse (2019), individualized consideration is the extent to which leaders mentor their followers to meet their needs. A leader who inspires employees by challenging preconceived notions about achieving personal and organizational objectives is said to exhibit inspirational motivation. Furthermore, intellectual stimulation involves leading by inspiring others to solve problems in a new way and renewing one's perspective.

Global integration of the business world has led to increased competition, compelling organizations to innovate because of threats from startup companies which are gaining market share. Organizations need to understand the influence of leadership on diffusion of innovation to adopt intellectual stimulation, supportive leadership, and personal recognition (Carreiro & Oliveira, 2019). Schuckert et al. (2018) explained intellectual stimulation involves fostering employee creativity and innovativeness. Transformational leaders pay attention to each employee by directly listening to issues their workers are facing and helping those individuals (Faupel & Süß, 2019). Transformational leaders improve organizational performance by working closely with team members to identify and implement necessary changes (Northouse, 2019). To increase productivity, managers should strive to identify individual skills and assign tasks accordingly to ensure alignment with organizational goals and objectives.

An organization's management leadership style influences overall culture, which is crucial to implementing proposed change strategies. Transformational leadership involves realigning executive power and introducing innovative processes and practices inside organizations (Northouse, 2019). Transformational leaders connect the vision of a business and objectives with personal standards of workers (Zhu et al., 2019). Transformational leaders rely on personal worth rather than external criteria to determine how much to pay employees and use internal resources (Watts et al., 2019). Transformational leaders increase employee satisfaction and reduce turnover by

14

motivating followers to align their goals with and organizational objectives (Zhu et al., 2019). Transformational leaders exhibit traits such as motivation, mentorship, and conflict resolution.

Supply chain leaders can use transformational leadership to motivate employees to be innovative and increase organizational productivity and long-term sustainability. Organizational leaders operationalize dynamic capabilities within their organization to drive innovation and increase profitability (Schoemaker et al., 2018). Tian et al. (2018) encouraged managers to foster collaboration that builds team spirit, leading to synergy in terms of innovation and increased efficiency. Lack of team spirit leads to lack of motivation, and transformational leadership styles positively influence innovation (Tian et al., 2018). Organizational leadership involves increasing employee engagement and innovation to gain competitive advantages. Sulieman (2018) contended organizational transformational leadership styles positively influence dorganizational transformational leadership styles positively influence dorganizational transformational leadership styles positively influence dorganizational transformational leadership styles positively influence change management initiatives. Leadership style is vital to successful change implementation resulting in employee innovation, motivation, and productivity in terms of achieving competitive advantages.

Individual Consideration

Organizations achieve higher production outputs through leadership styles that promote innovation. Individualized consideration includes growing followers through coaching, mentoring, and teaching (Nguyen et al., 2019). Leaders who exhibit inspire team members have great concern for their followers, respect them as individuals, learn as much as possible about them, and pay attention to their ideas and worries (Northouse, 2019). Prabowo et al. (2018) defined individualized consideration as the core transformational leadership behavior that involves recognizing people as a vital part of the business. Leaders pay meticulous attention to requirements of the workforce and teach employees to bring about long-term sustainable change (Prabowo et al., 2018). Notably, leaders who pay attention to their subordinates indicate they care about their long-term development.

The consideration of each follower on an individual level is the first characteristic of a transformative leadership style. Leaders who are open-minded, emotionally intelligent and accommodate employees' aspirations contribute to the success of organizations (Puni et al., 2018). Leaders who communicate clear objectives and openness to new ideas from each member increase operational efficiency and effectiveness (Puni et al., 2018). Coaching enables employees to achieve improved performance and satisfaction, reducing employee turnover (Yin et al., 2019). Leaders who engage in the practice of individual consideration portray the unique qualities of each employee.

Coaching is the optimal setting for investigating novel approaches and formulating action plans while maintaining support and feedback. Mentoring involves leadership development as well as forming connections, managing company politics and cultures, and communicating effectively with workers (Prabowo et al., 2018). Workers who buy into change are less resistant when involved, recognized, and appreciated (Prabowo et al., 2018). Nguyen et al. (2019) opined that leaders should support and acknowledge followers' contributions. Individualized consideration linked to performance may aid leaders in making their followers aware of actions' that influence the business's core values (Nguyen et al., 2019). Leaders should align employees' personal goals with overall business goals to gain competitive advantages.

Intellectual Stimulation

Individuals who follow leaders are stimulated and encouraged to be creative. Intellectual stimulation refers to the degree to which transformative leaders question prevailing beliefs, take calculated risks, and actively seek out thoughts and opinions of their followers (Alqatawenah, 2018). Transformational leaders identify followers by stimulating creativity, invention, and originality. Business managers recognize their followers through simulation, preconceived notions, calculated risks, creativity, innovation, and collaboration that fosters creative and independent thinking (Alqatawenah, 2018). Leaders foster and cultivate individuals who are capable of independent thought. Transformational leaders consider unexpected problems and losses as educational resources; hence, learning is a focus for such leaders (Boukamcha, 2019). Followers reflect deeply, ask insightful questions, and search for ways to enhance how their coworkers carry out their tasks.

Leadership style concerns organizational behavior and leadership, which is critical to sustaining competitive advantage. Intellectual stimulation promotes critical thinking and problem-solving skills to improve the group and organization (Jensen et al., 2020). Transformational leaders are constantly teaching, illustrating, promoting, and soliciting fresh and inventive ideas for problem-solving from everyone in the organization (Northouse, 2019). Leadership style influences the effort subordinates exert as the actions instill trust in their followers and build confidence in the leader (Poghosyan & Bernhardt, 2018). An intellectually stimulating leader can distinguish, understand, reframe, and convey to affiliates possible opportunities and threats to the organization and their capabilities and weakness (Purwanto & Juliana, 2022). Transformational leaders tend to encourage followers to look for new approaches to solve issues, assess circumstances, and critically examine long-held beliefs (Purwanto & Juliana, 2022). Transformational leaders allow followers to pursue intelligent solutions to problems, analyze situations, and skeptically dispute deeply established opinions (Purwanto & Juliana, 2022). Developing a firm's leadership style may promote innovation and increase organizational effectiveness and profitability.

Leaders achieve competitive positioning by exhibiting behaviors that increase employee motivation. Leaders provide intellectual stimulation and workers' creative output by challenging the typical beliefs of a group and encouraging the team to perform better (Alqatawenah, 2018). The transformational leadership style involves challenging employees and motivating them to look for unique approaches to perform their jobs. Innovation is what leaders of successful high-growth organizations see as the primary driver of growth in companies (Boukamcha, 2019). According to Boukamcha (2019), the cornerstone of innovations involves the organizational ability to identify market possibilities and increase sustainability. Leaders who provide intellectual stimulation inspire staff to think creatively, examine challenges from various perspectives, and search for innovative and more effective solutions to problems using technology (Alqatawenah, 2018). To meet new demands and remain competitive, leaders must differentiate themselves from competitors via leadership strategies. Assessing leader style is essential in achieving organizational objectives. Findings from a research study on intellectual stimulation leadership demonstrated a significant association between intellectual stimulation leadership and the motivation and commitment of workers (Alqatawenah, 2018). Employees were more committed to their jobs and experienced less stress when managers used intellectual stimulation (Jensen et al., 2020). Employees achieve higher levels of commitment and motivation through intellectual stimulation and transformational leadership (Poghosyan & Bernhardt, 2018). Supply chain managers should understand links between intellectual stimulation, innovative ideas, and successful supply chain management implementation. Intellectual stimulation involves generating new ideas and improving supply chain management performance (Purwanto & Juliana, 2022). Business managers must be upbeat and coachable and strengthen their leadership skills to influence their followers to look towards goals.

Inspirational Motivation

A transformational leader develops a vision that is appealing to followers. Inspirational motivation in leaders enables followers to create high standards of operations, communicate effectively on their goals, and give meaning to their tasks. Inspirational motivation significantly impacts employee performance via exercising individual care and motivation (Top et al., 2020). Employee motivation depends on the sense of purpose that drives employees to achieve organizational objectives and personal goals. Inspirational motivation involves understanding the distinction between intrinsic and extrinsic motivators and inspiring people to achieve personal goals. Intrinsic motivators include pursuits that provide a sense of personal fulfillment and satisfaction (Shaheen et al., 2019). Leaders encourage team members to commit to their corporate vision by raising team spirit and fostering community and a sense of purpose, resulting in increased employee internal contentment. Extrinsic motivation involves relying on an external reward system such as a bonus, promotion, award, or prestige (Siangchokyoo et al., 2020) The primary goal of business leaders should be to understand team member plans and tailor motivational strategies accordingly to increase employee satisfaction.

Idealized Influence

A transformational leader exhibits idealized influence by serving as a role model in organizations. Organizational leaders have high standards that followers respect, resulting in trust building. Transformational leaders prioritize needs of their followers over theirs to help them be the best versions of themselves (Asbari, 2021). They are trustworthy and ethical and refrain from abusing positions of authority for personal benefit, attracting followers to emulate leader characteristics (Prabhu & Srivastava, 2022). Transformational leaders promote confidence that leads to improved employee performance, commitment, and overall organizational effectiveness.

Related and Contrasting Theories to Transformational Leadership Theory

Business leaders design their supply chain to influence the total cost by integrating their value chain to foster collaboration. Organizational leaders incorporate people, processes, and policies into their operations to meet societal pressures (Luthra & Mangla, 2018). The transformational leadership theory is the conceptual framework for this study. I reviewed transactional leadership and laissez-faire leadership theories as contrasting theories as related theories to transformational leadership theory.

Transactional Leadership Theory

A transactional leader focuses on the exchange that occurs other than employee development. Max Weber 1947 proposed the transactional leadership approach, and in 1981, Bernard Bass adopted the term as a leadership approach for managers. Transactional leaders motivate and direct their followers' using approaches that appeal to their self-interests (Chen & Zhang, 2021). Organizations give transactional leaders the power to lead their followers to achieve organizational obligations. Prabhu and Srivastava (2022) refer to the transactional leadership approach as the expressive leadership style that instructs followers to follow the leader's directions. The contingent rewards influence the exchange between the leader and followers, active management through exception, passive management by exception, and laissez-faire (Northouse, 2019). The transactional leadership process involves controlling and managing operations to achieve short-term goals.

A transactional leader gets rewarded for achieving a particular goal and clarifying their expectations to their followers. Transactional leaders also provide their followers with all the necessary resources and jointly set goals they should meet to achieve the reward (Mokhtar et al., 2019). Transactional leaders are keen to develop specific, measurable, attainable, realistic, and timely (SMART) goals that their subordinates will achieve. A supply chain manager that exhibits a transactional leadership style of management identifies the area in the department requiring a change through innovation and motivates the followers to be innovative towards developing a solution for the problem.

Active management by exception is the condition where transactional leaders strictly follow up with their subordinates to ensure they follow all set rules and regulations. The transactional leader would present the followers with the innovation to solve the problem (Northouse, 2019). Employee reward facilitates the faster development of a solution as the followers compete to develop the most effective innovation (Alrowwad & Abualoush, 2020). The transactional leader uses the reward as an incentive to persuade the followers to accept the challenge aiming at the price. If a follower deviates from the rules and regulations, the transactional leader will apply corrective measures to prevent a repeat of the mistakes (Mokhtar et al., 2019). The transactional leadership approach contradicts the attitude of transformational leaders who give their followers autonomy.

Passive management by exception is where transactional leaders intervene when their followers fail to meet the set standards of operation. Transformational leaders motivate their followers to think through ways of improving the output quality, while transactional leaders punish their followers for their lower performance (Chen & Zhang, 2021). A transactional leadership style does not promote innovation, as the employees would hold back their need to be innovative for fear of failure (Prabhu & Srivastava, 2022). Organizational leaders use transactional leadership approaches such as punishment and reward to correct and motivate their followers to generate mutual gain (Northouse, 2019). The exchange process between the follower and the transactional leader allows the firm to achieve its objectives as each party acquires its interests (Mokhtar et al., 2019). Transactional leaders subject their followers to taking personal responsibility for the losses they cause the organization.

Laissez-Faire Leadership Theory

The laissez-faire leadership style is like transformational leadership with the characteristic of building trust and relying on employees by giving them autonomy to increase creativity and achieve their goals. The laissez-faire leader must be more responsive and active in situations requiring superiors' involvement by avoiding decision-making (Nielsen et al., 2019). The laissez-faire leadership style is the least effective management style, as the absence of decisions and interactions with the leader violates the followers' expectations (Robert & Vandenberghe, 2020). Vital relational employees may have a negative attitude towards their managers and organization, which affects the quality of exchange relationships between employees and leaders (Alrowwad & Abualoush, 2020). The laissez-faire leader builds a relationship and encourages their followers to change.

In the laissez-faire leadership style, the leader delegates work and hands off by allowing members to make the decisions. The laissez-faire leadership style could be effective if managers check in on employees' work performance and provide regular feedback (Robert & Vandenberghe, 2020). Laissez-faire leaders offer limited problem-solving guidance, performance feedback, or work improvement intervention leading to role conflict, increased stress, and low job satisfaction (Donkor & Zhou, 2020). The

laissez-faire leadership style is helpful to managers in creating their leadership style in an organization that motivates and encourages the employees to be more efficient and creative (Arif & Akram, 2018). Successful change initiative requires strategic planning, execution, and employee participation, and a lack of strategies may inhibit adoption within the organization.

Laissez-faire leaders leave their followers to make decisions independently. In the laissez-faire approach, the leaders abdicate their responsibility and leave their followers to run the affairs of the organization without a sense of direction (Robert & Vandenberghe, 2020). The laissez-faire approach contradicts transformational leadership since a transformational leader is a coach who guides the followers on how to operate. Transformational leaders always advise their followers to achieve the set goals (Mokhtar et al., 2019). Laissez-faire leadership influences followers and encourages personal growth, leading to an increase in motivation and job performance.

Leadership Effect on Organizational Performance

Leadership quality is one of the most critical variables that could influence the outcome of any company's endeavors, as firms rely on leadership skills to drive innovative teams. Globalization gave rise to technological advancement and change in consumer buying behavior, causing organizations to respond rapidly to change and remain competitive (Zekhnini et al., 2020). Teamwork is essential to a firm's success; hence, the need for leaders to plan, organize and monitor creative teams tasked with idea generation, exploration, and experimentation (Super, 2020). Team members acquire

knowledge through learning, knowledge-sharing, and integration to achieve innovative outcomes.

Leadership style reflects how an individual directs and inspires others to work toward the organization's accomplishment. Al Khajeh (2018) examined the influence of leadership styles in organizations and posited that democratic, transformational, bureaucratic, and autocratic leadership styles positively impact organizations' performance. Charismatic and transactional leadership styles do not give employees opportunities and autonomy (Al Khajeh, 2018). Leadership style is an amalgamation of many features and personality quirks that leaders use to build relationships with team members (Chen et al., 2021). Organizational management strategies that are dynamic and open to change are critical to successfully implementing innovative technology and products, leading to higher productivity and competitive advantage.

Organizations strive to incorporate transformational leadership in a fiercely competitive environment. Yang and Yang (2018) advised firms to adopt product and process innovation to pursue a new market for long-term sustainability and argued that transformational leadership significantly facilitates explorative innovation. According to Naidoo et al. (2019), rewards, resources, and leadership vision are the three latent leadership variables that positively relate to innovation. Organizational attributes consist of leadership that supports innovative activities. Transformational leadership cultivates connections and interactions that promote followers' creativity (Nandasinghe, 2020). Research shows that a transformational leader highlights followers' consciousness about the value and method of achieving the desired outcome.
Transformational leadership emphasizes creating highly desirable expectations for followers and motivating them to recognize further possibilities in their workplaces. Goal setting directs most human activity that transfers the need to encourage and drive individual efforts toward the objectives (Nandasinghe, 2020). Leadership strategies improve organizational outcomes and performance by establishing supply chain management practices (Para-González et al., 2018). Leaders of firms communicate clear goals and motivate teams to attain personal and corporate objectives.

Human resource professionals recruit individuals with traits that align with the organization to achieve higher performance. Leaders' behaviors affect employees' performance, trust, job satisfaction, and growth in the business atmosphere (Chen et al., 2021). Leadership is essential to every business, and the roles and responsibilities are getting more complex (Chen et al., 2021). Leaders can alter overall leadership styles to ensure improved results (Chen et al., 2021). Firms provide training programs for employees to overcome organizational and environmental difficulties.

The level of success achieved in an organization correlates with the management approach utilized. Al Khajeh (2018) found a correlation between the kind of leadership style and the corporate culture and performance. Ahmad and Karadas (2021) presented a connection between leadership and the state of the organization. The importance of leadership in achieving organizational objectives has resulted in a significant amount of management research. Consequently, researchers and scholars have developed many theories to justify how leadership makes management procedures seamless.

Leadership Strategies

Managers adopt multiple leadership strategies to optimize their supply chain operations. According to Hashmi et al. (2018), quality leadership involves implementing new and relevant technology to boost employee morale, increase organizational performance, and encourage firms to develop leadership skills. Leadership styles include autocratic, transactional, bureaucratic, charismatic, transformational, democratic, and laissez-faire leadership. Authoritarian leadership is also called the authoritative leadership strategy. Autocratic leaders have all the power and authority, resulting in a directive style (Adnan & Valliappan, 2019). Uslu (2019) referred to the autocratic leader as directive; without consulting team members, the manager solely decides the operations' policies. Authoritarian leaders may have authoritarian, benevolent, and incompetent personalities (Kibbe, 2019). Leadership styles refer to how leaders influence subordinates to achieve organizational goals and objectives.

The benevolent autocrat is a positive kind of autocrat who uses their power and authority positively. The strict autocrats influence their subordinates to follow them by threatening, instilling fear, criticizing, and imposing penalties for failure to comply to set rules and regulations (Northouse, 2019). Although autocrats possess massive powers, benevolent autocrats lead by encouraging, motivating, and guiding their subordinates to follow their idea (Kibbe, 2019). By contrast, incompetent autocrats have insufficient leadership skills and hide their weaknesses in their power. Managers achieve a faster decision-making process and increased motivation with unchallenged powers (Kibbe, 2019). The autocratic leadership style results in higher employee turnover due to a lack of motivation and inclusion (Uslu, 2019). Autocratic leaders use excessive power and authority to control their subordinates' actions, which sometimes become chaotic and destroy their relationships with their juniors.

Organizational managers adopt a transactional leadership style to control, organize and achieve short-term goals. Transactional leaders use rewards and penalties to control their followers, as employees who follow instructions are rewarded, while those who oppose the rules get punished (Northouse, 2019). Bureaucratic leadership is a leadership approach that follows specific rules and regulations that direct the employees' actions. Government organizations use a bureaucratic form of governance to ensure job security and stability (Adnan & Valliappan, 2019). Organizations with a bureaucratic form of management could be more efficient with more extended change implementation timelines due to the necessary approval process, which may hinder creativity and innovation among employees based on their defined roles (Uslu, 2019). The transaction exists between the leader and followers to achieve the organizational goal as employees focus on the reward.

Charismatic leadership is the leadership strategy whereby leaders strive to influence their followers. Uslu (2019) explained that charismatic leaders have high communication skills to persuade their followers to buy their ideas which are crucial to organizational success. Charismatic leaders encourage teams to collaborate and develop a sense of belonging, leading to long-term sustainability (Adnan & Valliappan, 2019; Vasilescu, 2019). A charismatic leadership style may cause the leader to be self-centred by drawing employees toward their interests instead of considering the organization's interests.

Technological Innovations for Supply Chain Managers

Business managers face the challenge of analyzing the complexity and uncertainty of the economic systems due to supply chain disruptions. The effectiveness of managers depends on the comprehension of strategic positions, values, experiences, and personalities of leaders driving employee behaviors (Dubey et al., 2019). Organizations achieve superior performance through employee motivation linked to leadership (Yildiz & Sezen, 2019). Organizations attain business sustainability by integrating advanced technology and human resources (Hashmi et al., 2018). Cloud computing, 3D printing, advanced analytics, blockchain, radio-frequency identification (RFID), and the internet of things (IoT) have transformed the business models and reviewed the role of 5G technology in the digitalization of the supply chain while exploring the barriers to procurement (Attaran, 2020). Information technology helps organizations improve operational efficiency and productivity by optimizing manual processes leading to a faster turnaround time.

Technological innovation strategies such as continuous improvement allow organizations to optimize current processes, thereby reducing costs and increasing productivity. Globalization increased competition due to changes in consumer preferences and technological advancements, compelling firms to respond rapidly. Business leaders, technology suppliers, and policymakers ought to understand the factors influencing the adoption, management, and use of ICT resources to gain a competitive advantage (Yunis et al., 2018). Information technology is critical to maintaining a firm's capability and competitiveness, which determines its future growth and sustainability (Shou et al., 2021). Industry 4.0 encompasses a variety of technologies and processes for achieving an autonomous, dynamic, flexible, and accurate production system (Da Silva et al., 2018). Supply chain integration with information technology provides new opportunities for the industry in various market sectors.

Innovative technology enables supply chain organizations to optimize their picking process by configuring thresholds that trigger system-directed replenishment and improve inventory accuracy with a quality check process that reviews inventory. Firms integrate their business operations with innovative technologies such as information technology, lean agile management, big data application, and blockchain technology to build a sustainable supply chain (Mangla et al., 2020). Organizations adopt innovative technologies, such as the internet of things, big data, warehouse management system, and transportation management system, to gain a competitive advantage. Sahara and Aamer (2021) contended IoT based warehouses provide firms with real-time visibility of integrated data resulting in prompt response and decision-making processes that optimize operations. Integrating innovative technology would help organizations gain enhanced operational performance and customer satisfaction.

Employees have better lives, and firms achieve higher productivity with an improved and optimized supply chain process that automates obsolete manual processes resulting in faster delivery of goods and customer satisfaction. Consumer buying behavior changed because innovative technology forced firms to enhance cross-border ecommerce to gain a competitive advantage (Yu et al., 2021). By aligning supply chain management with big data analytics, business leaders would significantly impact innovative development in their organizations (Bag et al., 2020). The supply chain design is vital to achieving competitive advantage and long-term sustainability. Firms deploying technology without adequate employee training may result in user error, affecting the quality of the output, hence the need for organizations to train employees on the tools required to carry out their job.

Supply chain innovation is crucial to a firm's survival, hence the need to adopt new technologies. Technological innovations positively affect internal operations, postponement, and strategic supplier partnerships, and firm leaders should adopt strategies to build internal competency to improve their supply chain (Lee et al.,2018; Lee, 2021). Supply chain organizations collaborate with stakeholders and leverage data analysis to build efficient systems and develop superior capabilities.

Organizations with an international presence need help to improve sustainable outcomes in global supply chains. Changes in demand patterns, competition, and pressures from the government have highlighted the importance of integrating sustainable development with supply chain management (Sánchez-Flores et al., 2020). Technology advancements affect logistics and supply chains, hence the need to implement innovative technology solutions that provide visibility and connectivity in the supply chain (Zekhnini et al., 2020). Leadership skills in supply chain management drive technology adoption to handle performance issues. Organizations should adopt appropriate technologies to remain competitive in the global market. Technology has significantly improved the effectiveness and efficiency of supply chain operations (Sánchez-Flores et al., 2020). Effective supply chain technology should connect the present data to past information to facilitate accuracy in predicting the most profitable action (Zekhnini et al., 2020). Supply chain technology is essential since it enables the participants to gather and access critical information more easily. Supply chain managers use technology to access information to manage their operations by reviewing consumer buying behavior data effectively (Gurtu & Johny, 2019). Business leaders use technology to simplify inventory management with access to inventory status from handheld devices such as mobile phones and tablets. Effective supply chain organization includes managing executive orders, transport, inventories, networks, and workforce (Blossey et al., 2019). Technology enables supply chain managers to have timely and accurate information that allows them to respond to emerging issues that might disrupt the department's operations.

Firms should leverage technology to have more visibility of the entire supply chain process to make strategic decisions. The decision support system is essential for churning data and performing timely simulations for multiple solutions. A successful supply chain organization connects systems and technology to generate information relevant to managers in decision-making (Rejeb et al., 2019). Firms could leverage technology to increase agility by recommending effective strategies that increase profitability. Technology leads to synchronization that promotes collaboration across its value chain to achieve cost savings, inventory management, and competitive advantage (Blossey et al., 2019).

Supply chain consumers expect up-to-date information and travel history of their orders to ensure on-time delivery. Supply chain technology helps firms overcome the challenges of the Omni channel resulting in increased customer satisfaction (DiVaio & Varriale, 2020). The increasing demand for agility has enabled firms to leverage supply chain technology to increase visibility, accuracy, and agility for long-term sustainability. The supply chain industry has a wide range of technologies that managers could adopt to increase efficiency and effectiveness in their operations. These technologies include the internet of things (IoT), blockchain, artificial intelligence, robots, automotive technologies, and 3D printing.

Internet of Things (IoT)

The IoT has undergone a massive transformation to accommodate operations in different fields of society. In supply chain management, supply chain managers benefit from the IoT to manage the finished goods, facilitate the shipping of computers, and control the operations in warehouse stations (DiVaio & Varriale, 2020). Supply chain managers use IoT to improve traditional supply chain activities, which enables managers to improve communication and deliver insight more effectively and efficiently. Business managers use IoT to support manufacturing operations by increasing efficiency in managing the organization's assets, setting the transportation pace, improving freight monitoring, and increasing accuracy in fleet management (Rejeb et al., 2019).

Supply chain managers use IoT to track fleets' locations, predict weather conditions, identify the environmental status of the customer, and assess traffic patterns. IoT enables supply chain managers to find misplaced inventories and missing shipments to reduce the financial impact (Rejeb et al., 2019). Supply chain managers could use IoT to determine the status of their preservation equipment to avoid failures that negatively impact the organization shortage (Mostafa et al., 2020). Implementing IoT in a warehouse management system enables organizations to achieve increased efficiency and prevent counterfeiting and inventory shortage (Mostafa et al., 2020). Successful organizations leverage IoT to improve their competencies and business strategy, differentiating them from competitors.

Firms integrate IoT with business and knowledge resources to create capabilities and strategies which increase competitive advantage. Supply chain managers use IoT to eliminate cyber security risks and equipment and stock protection (Rejeb et al., 2019). IoT integrated into a firm's supply chain ensures the safety of goods, optimizes operations that prevent counterfeiting and increases the reliability and accuracy of the picking process (Mostafa et al., 2020). Integrating the IoT in warehouse operations involves identifying the critical components for data integration to improve warehouse operations (Sahara & Aamer, 2021). The IoT technology provides supply chain managers with proactive information that triggers required maintenance to the appropriate unit.

Blockchain

The blockchain is a cryptocurrency technology that helps improve visibility and transparency through supply chain processes. Business managers leverage blockchain

technology to facilitate tracking vital records across the supply chain to prevent leakages, help identify counterfeit products at risk suppliers, and ensure adherence to legal requirements (Rejeb et al., 2019). Blockchain technology for operations management focuses on decision-making processes in supply chain management for increased performance (Di Vaio &Varriale, 2020). Blockchain technology promotes industry cooperation by reducing fragmentation, inefficiency, and uncoordinated operations, thereby allowing the flow of information (Rejeb et al., 2019). The critical property of blockchain is immutability, meaning that the data is not erasable.

Blockchain facilitates the development of audit trails which are more effective than the traditional auditing styles of examining emails and a few simple electronic records. Distributed ledger technology enables the supply chain manager to manage a vast range of transactions that facilitates accurate tracking of goods sent to the customers (Gurtu & Johny, 2019). With blockchain technology, supply chain management entered the big data era disrupting the industry by transforming global and local supply chains with improved efficiency, data management, and smart contract management (Dutta et al., 2020). Organizations are investing in blockchain technology to explore new applications to achieve higher operational efficiency.

Artificial Intelligence

The modern supply chain contains a large amount of valuable data that enables managers to gain sufficient insight into the global supply chain. With artificial intelligence, machine learning, and predictive analytics, warehouse operations could improve supply chain business significantly. Artificial intelligence automates warehouse operations and increases customer satisfaction through proactive inventory management, improved delivery time, and building strategic sourcing relationships (DiVaio & Varriale, 2020). Researchers have identified the direct and indirect effects of artificial intelligence, supply chain resilience, and supply chain performance in supply chain dynamism and uncertainty (Belhadi et al., 2021). Before adopting technological innovation, supply chain business leaders need help to gather insights to make an informed decision. Globalization gave rise to vast amounts of data that managers utilize to improve the performance of supply chains. Organizations achieve cost advantage through predictive analytics that optimizes product intelligence (Rejeb et al., 2019). Artificial intelligence and machine learning utilize vast data with complex algorithms to help supply chain managers run multiple transportation plans in different directions.

Robots and Automation

Robot technology has disrupted the supply chain industry by replacing human resources to increase efficiency and optimize warehouse operations. Supply chain managers leverage automated technologies for completing tasks such as receiving, picking, and packaging relationships (DiVaio & Varriale, 2020). Supply chain managers integrate robots into their operations to reduce human errors and increase collaboration with human resources to increase warehouse capacity by 20% (Blossey et al., 2019). Supply chain managers leverage robots to collect, sort, move, and store products within warehouse operations.

3D Printing

Organizational leaders use 3D printing technology to satisfy customers' desire for personalized products. The 3D printing technology enables supply chain managers to decentralize production to facilitate the production of similar products at the local assembly points (Blossey et al., 2019). 3D printing eliminates geopolitical risks, lowers the carbon footprint, and reduces outsourcing-related tariffs (Gurtu & Johny, 2019). 3D printing helps organizations meet high consumer demands through optimized cost savings.

Supply Chain Process and Management

Supply chain organizations deploy technology to change products, services, and business processes that increase competitive advantage. Supply chain businesses achieve competitive advantage through cost or differentiation integrated with a reliable value chain and information technology (Tavana et al., 2022). Supply chain management entails designing, planning, executing, controlling, and monitoring the supply chain activities for value creation, competitiveness, advantage, and syncing supply with demand while evaluating global performance (Muhlroth & Grottke, 2022). Supply chain organizations should consider standardized management systems to increase efficiency and effectiveness with innovative outcomes (Zimon et al., 2019). Digital transformation of the supply chains enables organizations to foster collaboration between internal and external systems and organizations (Tavana et al., 2022). Supply chain organizations strive to advance their business operations and improve operational efficiency.

Planning by supply chain businesses is critical to managing inventory and manufacturing processes to meet consumer demands while sourcing raw materials for production. The essential technologies for facilitating the supply chain include big data, data analytics, blockchain, artificial intelligence, machine learning, and the IoT (Tavana et al., 2022). The constantly changing business environment is compelling organizations to integrate with their supply chain partners to share resources and capabilities to gain benefits. Organizations that adopt a supply chain process perspective integrate processes and activities across their supply chain to achieve superior supply chain performance and incredible value creation (Rajaguru & Matanda, 2019). The global change in demographics and trends has led to advancement in technological innovation, forcing firms to implement strategies that meet stakeholders' needs.

Supply chain management involves integrative management of firms' operations, logistics, procurement, and information technology. Efficient supply chains require transactional relationships with suppliers and employees who plan, are reliable, and are efficient in developing standardized products integrated with technology (Srinivasan et al., 2021). Firm investment in emerging technologies gives leaders access to information, reduces costs, and increases collaboration and the quality of products (Agrawal & Narain, 2018). Business entities should design a process that involves strategic sourcing and assessment of every aspect of the supply chain model, such as locations, transportation, resources, and products.

The building blocks of the supply chain process comprise strategic planning, demand planning, supply planning, procurement, warehousing, order fulfillment, transportation process, and manufacturing. Organizations should leverage big data, cloud computing, and the IoT to overcome supply chain challenges. Digital technology helps improve supply chain visibility leading to modularization, simplification, and standardization of products and processes (Agrawal & Narain, 2018). Supply chain organizations should identify vendors for procuring goods and services efficiently that meet the required production standards.

Strategic Planning

Organizations should meet customer needs efficiently and adaptively to meet the constantly changing market forces. Supply chain sustainability strategies require leadership support, supplier and staff involvement in sustainability initiatives, and a planning process to achieve superior performance (Orr & Jadhav, 2018). Business managers plan strategically to build capabilities that assess and mobilize resources and improve their bottom line and partner relationships. Supply chain inventory shortages may result in lost sales, and overstocking holds up capital; hence managers need to plan accordingly to avoid supply chain disruptions.

Supply chain businesses could utilize technological innovations to plan, sustain, and differentiate themselves within the industry. With the market increasing competition and business expansion, supply chain sustainability leaders should improve strategic planning to prepare for market changes to meet the volatile needs of the different market segments (Donkor et al., 2018; Orr & Jadhav, 2018). Digitalization of the supply chain yields benefits such as greater transparency, better supply chain decision-making, flexibility, and improved asset utilization (Attaran, 2020). Disruptive technology force firms to redesign their supply chain and encourage managers to have discipline, plan, and get commitment from upper management (Attaran, 2020). Businesses establish a framework for their supply chain operations by considering location and partners when mapping transportation routes, warehouse planning, inventory management, and distribution.

Demand Planning

Supply chain demand planning enables firms to manage inventory and forecast product demand to meet customer needs on time. Organizations improve supply chain performance by incorporating forecasting, which optimizes inventory, reducing the onhand inventory and enhancing visibility on supply chain costs (Swierczek & Szozda, 2019). Supply chain leaders leverage demand planning to resolve demand and supply issues and design a customer-oriented supply chain using historical data to improve forecasting.

Business managers use supply chain demand planning to lay the foundation for inventory levels and assist firms in achieving accurate forecasts by linking sales inventory and operational planning. The dimensions of demand planning include data management, forecasting methods, performance, organization, and people (Vereecke et al., 2018). Businesses that align supply and demand improve efficiency with better customer service through quantitative forecasting that leverages advanced technologies (Swierczek & Szozda, 2019; Vereecke et al., 2018). The critical task that supply chain managers complete is demand planning, which reviews supply and demand when determining inventory levels.

Supply Planning

Organizations measure supply chain efficiency and effectiveness by delivering the right products at the right time with the least cost. The supply chain plan could enable business managers to achieve accurate inventory levels and minimize costs across the value chain to gain a competitive advantage. Supply chain firms use tactical planning in innovative manufacturing, communication, and production technologies such as the IoT, big data analytics, cloud computing, artificial intelligence, and virtual and augmented reality to achieve a supply chain with intelligence, flexibility, and sustainability (Oh & Jeong, 2019). Business entities engage in supply planning to understand profit potential to build capacity, financing, and stakeholder confidence. Organizations leverage predictive analytics based on historical data to understand consumer buying behavior and factors influencing product demand.

Supply chain managers develop methodologies and leverage technologies in planning to optimize the end-to-end flow of materials, products, and distribution to consumers. Organizations integrate industry 4.0 into their supply chain to increase efficiency, minimize waste, optimize production activities, improve decision-making, intelligent tracking, and assess raw materials (Bedi et al., 2021). Supply chain leaders should understand consumer needs to determine forecasts and estimations that could enhance the supplier relationships needed for long-term sustainability.

Procurement

Supply chain managers spend much time designing the firm's procurement process, which is a vital part of the business. Procurement involves selecting and purchasing the goods and services required to achieve daily business operations that create value (Kaur et al., 2020). Supply chain organizations gain a competitive advantage with effective supply chain management achieved through the integration of blockchain technology that connects manufacturers, distributors, and service providers within the same decentralized network for a minimal transaction fee (Omar et al., 2021). Supply chain businesses with efficient procurement practices can leverage technology to achieve cost savings from quantity discounts and operational savings.

Companies build integrated stakeholder networks to create value across their value chain and achieve a streamlined procurement process. Firms use procurement as a tool kit to mitigate supply chain risk during disaster relief operations and achieve competitive advantage in the volatile market (Kaur et al., 2020). Business organizations can increase profitability through an efficient procurement process achieved through technology that automates, track, and reduce costs. Supply chain businesses keep up with market leaders and small and emerging eCommerce companies by automating their warehouse supply chains using robotics and warehouse management systems with builtin warehouse execution systems (Kaur et al., 2020). Supply chain distribution companies use complex warehouse management systems (Zunic et al., 2018). The warehouse management system offers visibility into inventory to supply chain managers and manages fulfillment operations from the distribution center to the stores or end users. Supply chain managers should review the proposed technology going into their supply chain for user acceptance and reduced dependency on international suppliers (Rapciewicz et al., 2021). Supply chain managers could use warehouse management systems to optimize resources and support the need of the global supply chain.

A reliable business operation is vital to achieving long-term sustainability, and a business manager could use IT to reduce waste by fostering collaboration between business partners. Supply chain managers use innovative technology to improve business practices in their firms. Tarigan et al. (2021) recommended that retailers utilize IT when adjusting business strategies as employee performances improve with adopting IT into a firm's mission, vision, business objectives, and operating procedures. Remodeling an organization's supply chain through IT increases customer satisfaction; hence, firms should invest in IT as the benefits results in knowledge sharing, collaboration, and reliable demand forecasting, which are crucial to improving profitability (Tarofder et al., 2019). Data from leading logistics and supply chain providers who have successfully implemented a warehouse management system showed that innovative technology allows firms to gain a competitive advantage (Andiyappillai, 2020). Organizations could resolve logistic operations' quality and production problems by implementing a warehouse management system (Assis & Sagawa, 2018). Organizations with sustainable innovation management could quickly increase customer satisfaction leading to high-quality goods and services. Abdallah et al. (2021) explored the impact of supply chain quality management, supply chain agility, and supply chain innovation on supply chain performance. The authors demonstrated that supply chain quality management affects supply chain performance. Kusi-Sarpong et al. (2018) stated that industrial managers with sub-criteria focus on innovative sustainable practices. Supply chain managers might review the financial budget for innovation to foster sustainable supply chain management initiatives.

Businesses integrate information technology into their supply chain to improve efficiency and flexibility. Radiofrequency identification technology increases the productivity of warehouse associates and improves inventory accuracy (Pane et al., 2018). Organizations implemented radio frequency identification and information technology, enabling IoT systems and big data analytics to generate benefits through data collection (Lagorio et al., 2020). Radiofrequency identification technology efficiently controls the selection of goods and modernizes the work process, improving warehouse associates' lives (Pane et al., 2018). Organizations gain opportunities for innovation from strategic management, human resource management, supply chain management, and operations (Momaya, 2019). The dynamic nature of the business environment arose from technological advancement, changes in government policies, consumers changing needs, and competitors' advancement. Understandably, human resources are a source of competitiveness, and invariably, venture capital plays a role in innovation to achieve quality and business excellence.

Business leaders should implement supply chain strategies in response to current market trends, consumer buying behavior, and disruptive technologies, which are crucial for a higher profit margin. Firms implementing a warehouse management system in the manufacturing industry increase operational efficiency and improve quality (Assis & Sagawa, 2018). The results from the literature review indicated a firm focus on employee satisfaction by incorporating agile methodologies that reduce functional conflicts and increase the reliability and credibility of information to stakeholders. Supply chain firms design an automated warehouse management system for tracking, moving, sorting, and

effectively distributing offline products to optimize their inbound and outbound operations through the defined location-allocation and paths (Deng et al., 2018).

Firms achieve competitive advantage through cost or differentiation integrated with a reliable value chain and information technology. Successful warehousing optimization improves employees' lives with better processes, accurate data collection, statistics, location-allocation, and information transmission (Deng et al., 2018). Supply chain businesses could benefit from warehousing by increasing productivity, cost savings, and employee satisfaction when implementing a warehouse management system (Andiyappillai, 2020). When implementing a warehouse management system, business managers should closely monitor the project timeline, precise business requirements, system audits, and user training (Deng et al., 2018). Firms deploying technology without adequate employee training may result in user error, and safety concerns might affect output quality.

Transition and Summary

Section 1 contains the background of the problem, problem and purpose statements, nature of the study, research and interview questions, and conceptual framework. Section 1 also contains operational definitions, assumptions, limitations, delimitations, the significance of the study, and an extensive literature review of leadership strategies that influence the adoption of innovative technology in supply chain management, as well as the transformational leadership theory and alternative and contrasting theories. The literature review involved examining technological innovation strategies business leaders have used and showed that organizations gain opportunities for innovation through influential leadership style, effective communication, and investment in innovative technologies. In Section 2, I describe my role as the researcher, participants, research method and design, population and sampling, ethical research issues, data collection instruments and techniques, data organization techniques, data analysis, and validity and reliability of the study. Section 3 contains an overview of the study, a presentation of doctoral research findings, applications to professional practice, implications for social change, recommendations for action and future research, reflections, and summary and study conclusions.

Section 2: The Project

In Section 2, I discuss the methodology for this multiple case study that involved exploring leadership strategies supply chain managers use in adopting innovative technology to stay competitive in rapidly changing global business environments. First, I restate the purpose statement and discussed my role as the researcher. Then, I address study participants and eligibility criteria for the selection process. Next, I address the research method and design, population and sampling, ethical concerns, data collection instruments and techniques, data organization techniques, and data analysis. Finally, I conclude Section 2 with a discussion of validity and reliability of the study.

Purpose Statement

The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in terms of adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in rapidly changing global business environments. The targeted population was six managers from different supply chain companies in Atlanta, Georgia who successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies. Social change implications of this study include providing new strategies to supply chain managers and adopting new technologies to improve consumer welfare. A reliable supply chain with quality output could improve lives of consumers. Supply chain businesses expanding into new markets could increase economic value by creating new employment opportunities for the community, leading to a better quality of life.

Role of the Researcher

Researchers should adequately understand their roles to facilitate research and ensure ethical standards are observed (Cumyn, 2019). The researcher is the primary data collection instrument in a qualitative study and collaborates with participants when conducting research (Moser & Korstjens, 2018). I served as the primary data collection instrument in this study. The researcher is responsible for selecting participants, collecting data through interviews, document reviews and observations, and analyzing data (Merriam & Grenier, 2019). In a qualitative case study, the researcher must accumulate data from multiple sources to form convergent thinking through interviews, evidence, and existing documents (Yin, 2018). As the researcher in this study, my roles included (a) collecting literature materials on leadership strategies and supply chain management, (b) formulating interview questions based on the topic of the study, (c) conducting interviews, (d) transcribing, coding, and analyzing data, (e) presenting study findings, and (f) maintaining ethical standards in human research.

In qualitative research, researchers should explain prior personal or professional relationships between themselves and participants before commencing data collection (Corlett & Mavin, 2018). Relationships between researchers and participants before, during, and after research are critical elements of the research design and outcome (Florczak, 2017). Merriam and Grenier (2019) suggested that researchers should reflect on their relationships, make decisions based on the research design, and ensure connections do not affect research outcomes. I randomly selected participants for this study who did not have prior personal or professional relationships with me. As a project

director in a software company in Atlanta, Georgia, I have implemented multiple software projects in the supply chain sector for over 10 years. I realized supply chain managers' challenges in terms of implementing and integrating new technologies into their businesses. In this study, my primary motivation was to identify how business leaders in the supply chain sector could explore leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies and contribute to positive social change.

In conducting research that requires interaction with human beings, researchers should take all reasonable steps to ensure study objectives do not take precedence over ethical and moral protection of rights of participants (Collins & Stockton, 2018). The Belmont Report protocol guided my ethical choices in terms of establishing my role as the researcher. Researchers use the Belmont Report to ensure ethical research and protect study participants (Adashi et al., 2018; National Commission for the Protection of Human Subjects in Biomedical and Behavioral Research, 1979). There are three core principles for ethical research: (a) respect for persons, (b) beneficence, and (c) justice (National Commission for the Protection of Human Subjects of Biomedical and Behavioral Research, 1979). I integrated these principles to provide fair treatment and adhered to ethical standards during my interactions with participants.

Personal bias may influence data collection, analysis, and results of qualitative study interviews (Karagiozis, 2018; Yin, 2018). Researchers should clearly state their experiences, biases, and personal interests, which could add value to the research process and help avoid undermining researcher interpretations and propositions (Kaiser et al., 2018; Karagiozis, 2018). Researchers should use identity memo to ensure personal beliefs and experiences do not influence the research process (Cypress, 2017). Member checking allows participants to be more integrated into research and interview process and increases study validity and credibility (Iivari, 2018). I used member checking to understand meaning of participants' interview data and reduce personal bias during research.

To mitigate bias and avoid the influence of personal experience, assumptions, and beliefs, I recorded participant interviews, and data were collected from company documents for data analysis. I ensured data saturation by continually interviewing participants until no new themes emerged. I avoided personal bias while conducting interviews, observations, and documentary reviews by relying on participants' information and not including my opinions. I used member checking to reduce personal bias and data triangulation from multiple sources in order to minimize the threat of bias.

Researchers use interview protocols to educate participants about the interview process (Peterson, 2019). Interview protocols are essential because they include interview questions in order to extract detailed and rich data and understand participants' experiences (Yeong et al., 2018). Developing interview protocols helps researchers maintain systematic methods to secure information related to research questions (Braaten et al., 2020). Creating an interview protocol ensured consistency from participant to participant. A benefit of the interview protocol is reduction of bias throughout the data collection process. In this study, I used the interview protocol (see Appendix A) to organize the interview process and minimize the possibility of personal bias.

Participants

Researchers should select knowledgeable participants who understand intricacies involving the phenomenon under study (Knechel, 2019). According to Wong et al. (2021), participant selection should depend on exclusion and inclusion criteria set by the researcher, as recruiting and retaining research participants could be challenging. Researchers should have sets of standards for selecting participants based on competencies and suitability for the study (Zong et al., 2021). All six participants in this study were supply chain business managers who had 5 years or more experience, successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technology in a supply chain business, and currently worked in Atlanta, Georgia.

Researchers should ensure they explore various strategies to gain access to target participants for the study (Merriam & Grenier, 2019). I used the purposive sampling technique to gain access to the population for this study. Gaining access to research participants could constitute arduous and challenging tasks that researchers should devise strategies to overcome. Peu et al. (2020) identified the need for researchers to establish contact with constituted authorities, seek consent, and negotiate best ways to gain access to tresearch sites and participants. I gained access to participants through phone calls and emails. After obtaining Walden University Institutional Review Board (IRB) approval, I sent an informed consent form to target participants explaining the purpose of the study and sought their willingness to participants. Qualitative researchers use the purposeful sampling technique to choose participants who can provide in-depth information about the phenomenon under investigation (Moser & Korstjens, 2018). I used a purposeful sampling strategy to select supply chain managers with requisite knowledge about the study phenomenon.

Building a working relationship with the participants of a study is central to receiving needed cooperation and information from participants (Corlett & Mavin, 2018). According to Yin (2018), relationships between researchers and participants can vary based on each participant. Establishing a working relationship with the participants of a research study is an approach a researcher could explore to encourage openness and sharing of information about the research topic (Kraft et al., 2019). Relationships of trust between participants and researchers are critical to successful research (Guillemin et al., 2018). I created an atmosphere of trust by communicating via telephone and email correspondence with participants. I explained the purpose of the study and how their contributions would expand the existing supply chain management body of knowledge by providing guidelines for success to managers implementing innovative technology. Researchers use the consent form to provide research details and establish a rapport with participants (Riese, 2018). I sent the informed consent form and letter of invitation (see Appendix B) to six supply chain managers at the initial stage of the data collection process to establish a good working relationship.

Research Method and Design

Choosing the appropriate research method and design for a study is critical for a successful research process. The three broad categories of research methods researchers use are qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods (Abutabenjeh, 2018; Draper et al., 2021). Some qualitative designs include case studies, phenomenological, and

ethnography (Castleberry & Nolen, 2018). I used the qualitative method and case study design for this study.

Method

The three methods researchers use in conducting a research study include qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods (Draper et al., 2021; Strijker et al., 2020). Using open-ended questions, researchers explore complex phenomena using the qualitative method to gain deeper insights into how individuals view a phenomenon (Busetto et al., 2020; Stutterheim & Ratcliffe, 2021; Yin, 2018). The qualitative approach was appropriate for this study because the intent was to explore the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies.

Quantitative researchers seek empirical evidence by examining reality using data and mathematical and statistical processes to understand the relationships between variables (Zyphur & Pierides, 2020). According to Aschauer (2021), quantitative researchers seek to identify and define relationships among variables and develop testable hypotheses. In a quantitative study, researchers use statistical tools to analyze data and to ensure the generalizability of study findings and results (Godwin et al., 2021). The quantitative method was inappropriate for this study because I did not intend to test hypotheses relating to leadership strategies and adopting innovative technologies. Furthermore, I did not plan to examine the relationship between variables in this study.

Mixed method research combines qualitative and qualitative methods to complement the other approach (Strijker et al., 2020). The mixing of qualitative and quantitative methods proves more effective in studying complex phenomena because either technique compensates for the weaknesses of the other (Stoecker & Avila, 2021). Most quantitative researchers may find the mixed methods approach complex, expensive in terms of resource involvement, and time-consuming. In this study, I did not include numeral analysis or hypotheses testing; therefore, a mixed methods approach was not suitable.

Research Design

The research designs qualitative researchers use include case study, ethnographic, phenomenological, and narrative inquiry (Strijker et al., 2020; Tomaszewski et al., 2020). Qualitative researchers use the case study design to explore a phenomenon and to obtain a clearer picture of the research findings (Nilmanat & Kurniawan, 2021). The case study design is a flexible tool for investigation and allows the researcher to explore a phenomenon in a real-life setting (Siedlecki, 2020). I used the multiple case study design for the study. Data obtained using multiple case study designs from various study locations are more compelling and could make case study research more robust than a single case study design (Yin, 2018). For this study, I selected the multiple case study design was more appropriate to explore the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in adopting innovative technologies.

Researchers use the phenomenological design to reveal insights into cases they know about but lack in-depth knowledge about (Yildiz, 2020). The phenomenological design entails participants' lived experiences, the narratives, meanings, and interpretations they ascribe to previous experiences (Engward & Goldspink, 2020). The phenomenological design was inappropriate for this study because I did not intend to study participants' lived experiences. Researchers use ethnographic research design to explore human social activities and culture-based knowledge through participants' observation (Cubellis et al., 2021). The ethnographic method is suitable for discovering truths about cultural groups within natural settings (Pathiranage et al., 2020). The ethnographic design was not appropriate for this study because the intent was not to observe participants, explore social activities, or investigate cultural issues. Researchers use the narrative inquiry design to make meaning of participants' stories about their experiences relating to the phenomenon (Harper et al., 2020). According to Dibaba (2021), researchers use the narrative design to explore the life and history of individuals. The narrative design was unsuitable for this study because I intended to focus on something other than participants' life stories and experiences.

A qualitative researcher should ensure data sample adequacy to achieve data saturation and ensure the quality of research (Mpofu, 2021; Yin, 2018). Data saturation is the point in the data collection when additional data does not result in new meaningful themes (Guest et al., 2020). The qualitative researcher should demonstrate the attainment of data saturation (Fofana et al., 2020). I achieved data saturation in this study by

- selecting and interviewing participants with experience in the phenomenon of leadership strategies for adopting innovative technology,
- 2. continuing the collection and analysis of data from the participants until no new information and no new themes emerged.

- conducting methodical triangulation by obtaining and analyzing company documents, and
- adopting the member checking procedure by requesting participants' validation of data interpretation.

Population and Sampling

To achieve a credible research outcome, a qualitative researcher should carefully consider selecting research participants' using a sampling technique that aligns with the research objectives (Yin, 2018). The population of this study consisted of six supply chain business managers with backgrounds and expertise in supply chain management and technology who have successfully utilized leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies in their businesses. I purposely selected the business managers within the supply chain management industry for this multiple case study to obtain relevant and rich data.

Qualitative researchers should select a sample size for their purposeful sampling to provide relevant knowledge, practices, and experiences that align with the phenomenon under study (Devlin, 2018). Whether the qualitative researcher intends to generalize findings from samples or not, the researcher can select from several random or non-random sampling methods such as random sampling, purposeful sampling, convenience, theoretical, and snowball sampling (Campbell et al., 2020; Sebele-Mpofu & Serpa, 2020). According to Yin (2018), a sample size of between two and 20 participants is appropriate for a qualitative research study. Researchers use the purposeful sampling technique to identify variations in the data, relevant codes, and themes to answer the research question (Hjertstrand et al., 2021). I used the purposeful sampling technique to select six participants from different supply chain businesses within Atlanta, Georgia, who have successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies.

Qualitative researchers ensure data saturation to maintain a significant research quality. Data saturation occurs when information redundancy or no new interpretive meaning occurs based on additional data collection effort (Alam, 2020). I achieved data saturation in this study by selecting and interviewing knowledgeable participants, using methodical triangulation with organizational documents as a second data source, and adopting the member checking procedure by requesting participants' validation of data interpretation. I continued with interviewing process until I achieved information redundancy.

Qualitative researchers should carefully consider the interview setting, whether physical or virtual, to ensure the convenience of participants, respect their privacy, and make their location preferences a clear priority (McGrath et al., 2019; Moser & Korstjens, 2018). Selecting a good interview location in agreement with the participants is essential to the success of interviews and the richness of data collected. Consequently, after obtaining Walden University IRB approval to commence data collection, I approached the participants to choose between virtual and physical interviews and the right timing for each one. I implemented the choice of each participant.

Ethical Research

The researcher should exercise ethical consideration in every research study that involves the human population to protect the rights of the study participants (Kaewkungwal & Adams, 2019). Ethical research is the researcher's primary responsibility to ensure the protection of participants and a quality research outcome (Davies, 2020; Sivasubramaniam et al., 2021). The Belmont Report of 1979 indicated that researchers should adhere to ethical research requirements, principles, and protocols for a researcher working with human subjects. These include (a) respect for persons, (b) beneficence, and (c) justice (National Commission for the Protection of Human Subjects of Biomedical and Behavioral Research, 1979). For this study, I adhered strictly to the principles and protocols prescribed in the Belmont Report.

The common ethical dilemmas that qualitative researchers experience include (a) anonymity, (b) confidentiality, (c) informed consent, and (d) researchers' bias toward the participants (Chesser et al., 2019). Qualitative researchers should comply with research ethics in conducting studies involving human participants. In compliance with Walden University's requirement, I completed the online Human Research Participant training and obtained the Collaboration Institutional Training Initiative (CITI) certification (see Appendix D) covering research ethics on human subjects. Before commencing data collection in this study, I applied and obtained Walden University's IRB approval for this study is 11-17-22-0566335. The IRB approval ensures compliance with the Belmont Report's requirements for human research, especially respect for participants, their protection from harm, and fair treatment.

A qualitative researcher planning to use human participants in an ethical research process should provide intended participants with requisite and adequate information on the research as a basis for deciding whether to participate using the informed consent form (Axson et al., 2019). Xu et al. (2020) described the informed consent form as a vital tool a researcher could use to gain access to participants. The informed consent form allows voluntary participation choices based on sufficient information that participants would complete and sign. I sent the informed consent form to participants by email and requested them to read and sign it voluntarily if they wished to participate in the study.

Barwise et al. (2019) stated that participants should willingly consent to enroll in a study by signing the consent form only after understanding the associated risks and benefits. The informed consent form contains information on the purpose of the study, incentives, risks and benefits, and the confidential and voluntary nature of the study. A consent form section states that participants can withdraw anytime by sending mail, writing a letter, or placing a call. I started the consent process by sending a letter of invitation (see Appendix B) by email to all the participants to introduce myself and the research objectives. Next, I sent the informed consent form to each participant by email detailing research information, participation requirements, and consent to participate in the study. If the participant decides to be part of the study, I request the individual to sign the informed consent form and return it to me via email. Labib et al. (2018) and Clayton (2020) stated that participants should be allowed to withdraw their participation at any time during the research process. A portion of the consent form contains information stating that participants can cancel participation in the study by sending a mail, writing a letter, or placing a call to the effect. As contained in the consent form, I did not offer a financial incentive to participants but plan to share the final study with each participant.

The researcher has a responsibility to protect participants in a research study. Protecting research participants includes ensuring the privacy and confidentiality of information provided and data storage in a safe and protected place (Antonio et al., 2020). In this study, I ensured the participants' confidentiality by assigning alphanumeric codes such as P1, P2, P3, P4, P5, and P6 to conceal their identities. Similarly, I assigned codes such as C1, C2, C3, C4, C5, and C6 to disguise the identities of the supply chain companies. I securely stored all data collected in my password-regulated computer to ensure data protection and retain exclusive access. I will destroy all data and information after 5 years in compliance with the mandatory retention period.

Data Collection Instruments

In qualitative research, the primary data collection instrument is the researcher, who facilitates the collection of valid and reliable data for the study through interviews, sample observation, and examination of documents (Denzin & Lincoln, 2018). I was the primary data collection instrument for this study. As the primary data collection instrument, I worked to minimize bias and perform self-reflexivity. During the data collection phase, I (a) designed the interview questions, (b) provided an informed consent form to participants, (c) maintained the privacy and confidentiality of research participants, and (d) conducted semistructured interviews.

Qualitative research data include interviews, documentation, physical artifacts, direct observation, archival records, and participant observation (Yin, 2018). Every research study differs from another, and qualitative researchers tend to use a variety of data collection instruments to obtain information, including semistructured interviews (Aten & Denney, 2019). Qualitative researchers use interviews to explore a phenomenon from the participants' perspective. Semistructured discussions are the most common qualitative data collection technique researchers use to engage participants in a conversation using open-ended questions to seek insights into a participant's experience of a phenomenon (Castleberry & Nolen, 2018; McGrath et al., 2019). I interviewed eligible participants using open-ended semistructured interview questions (see Appendix E) and applied the interview protocol (see Appendix A) for uniformity. Using semistructured interviews for data collection allows the researcher to follow up with probing questions during the interview process and a flexible approach to gaining rich insights into a phenomenon (McGrath et al., 2019). I asked follow-up questions to the participants during interviews to gain rich insights into the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies.

Using the case study design, the qualitative researcher should review and obtain relevant company documents and archival records to ensure data triangulation (Yin, 2018). Company records serve as rich data sources with varied applications, including primary or secondary data sources, corroborating and validating evidence obtained from other sources, and supporting data triangulation (Siegner et al., 2018). I sought and obtained company documents and archival records during data collection to facilitate triangulation. The archival company documents include change management protocols, IT deployment strategies, peer mentoring plans, and minutes of strategic planning meetings. The main advantages of document analysis are cost-effectiveness and a dependable data source.
Achieving reliability and validity in a research study is critical to the quality of the research outcomes (Huttunen & Kakkori, 2020). Using triangulation improves the credibility and validity of research findings (Korstjens & Moser, 2018). By incorporating member checking, researchers can ensure the proper capturing of the participant's answers to the research question (Johnson et al., 2020). Document reviews support a case study because it allows the researcher to look at relevant information from a historical perspective (Merriam & Grenier, 2019). To ensure the research study includes an adequate amount of quality data, reaching data saturation is a critical component of the research methods (Saunders et al., 2018). To ensure the validity and reliability of the data collection instruments, I ensured data saturation, double-checked the data collected through member checking, and conducted triangulation using multiple sources to collect data.

Data Collection Technique

Qualitative researchers use data collection techniques, including surveys, semistructured interviews, participant observation, site visits, video recording, and review of company archival documents (Brown & Danaher, 2019). The data collection technique a researcher selects plays a pivotal role in reducing the misinterpretation of the responses from the participants (Alam, 2020). Qualitative researchers use semistructured interviews to gain autonomy and explore relevant ideas in the interview in a follow-up questioning session (Adeoye-Olatunde & Olenik, 2021). I used semistructured interviews as the primary data collection technique to formulate answers to the research question that explored the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technology. I interviewed eligible participants using open-ended questions (see Appendix E) and applied the interview protocol (see Appendix B).

An advantage of semistructured interviews is that the researchers can understand the phenomenon under study (Mokgolo & Barnard, 2019). A key benefit of semistructured interviews as a data collection technique is that researchers could develop open-ended questions around predetermined themes, which facilitates flexibility of the discussions and encourages follow-up questions to clarify points the participants made (Barrett & Twycross, 2018). A vital disadvantage of the semistructured interview technique is the potential to introduce bias in the study due to the poor structure of questions (Draper et al., 2018). I contacted the participants through email, telephone calls, and social media channels, such as Zoom, as different techniques to collect data. I emailed the participants an informed consent form to obtain their consent to participate in the research study, followed by a virtual semistructured interview using Microsoft teams and Zoom to collect data for this study. Consequently, I did not conduct a pilot study after IRB approval. I did not use the face-to-face data collection technique as I took advantage of technology that allowed scheduling flexibility for busy participants.

In addition to using the semistructured interview technique to collect data, researchers may collect data from documents and archival records of companies (Yin, 2018). Collecting document resources has the advantage of providing a historical timeline of the company and can offer specific situations that the researcher can explore (Siegner et al., 2018). Document search has the advantage of supporting the researcher to collect detailed information that could help in providing in-depth analysis, thereby contributing to rich data (Yin, 2018). I collected archival company data such as change management protocols, IT deployment strategies, peer mentoring plans, and minutes of strategic planning meetings to obtain information on strategies supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies.

Transcript review and member checking are strategies qualitative researchers use to allow participants to self-review and adjust transcribed materials and the researcher's interpretation to align with the information provided during interview sessions (Slettebo, 2021). Transcript review and member checking are participants' self-confirming activities which help the researcher achieve quality data collection, analysis, and research outcomes (Ellis, 2019). Member checking involves allowing the participants to validate the results of transcribed data or research findings for accuracy and, if necessary, provide corrections to the researcher to achieve accurate information (Brear, 2019). I adopted a member checking process to enhance the validity and reliability of the study by emailing the data interpretation summary to each participant for validation.

Data Organization Techniques

A researcher should ensure proper organization and storage of information and data obtained during data collection (Borycz, 2021). Efficient organization and documentation of data is an essential aspect of the research process for ease of retrieval, protection of data, and confidentiality of participants (Barrett & Twycross, 2018). Data organization involves developing a file naming system, storage protocol, and secured access procedure to ensure ease of retrievability and uphold participants' confidentiality (Bohan & Kellam, 2021). Note-taking and digital recording during interviews and collecting information from multiple sources enable researchers to effectively manage data and enhance the data analysis process in qualitative research (Denzin & Lincoln, 2018). I followed the guideline on the interview protocol (see Appendix A) containing data organization procedures such as digital recording, note-taking, transcription, and analysis. I used NVivo 12 software to organize data and documents.

I used note-taking and digital recording processes during interviews to collect information from multiple sources to organize and enhance the data analysis process. Researchers should protect participants' identities through labels and coding (Lindlof & Tylor, 2019). I used alphanumeric tags P1, P2, P3, P4, P5, and P6 to identify participants. Using pseudonyms to protect the identity of participants in a qualitative study is an ethical practice and an acceptable research process standard (Yin, 2018). I used pseudonyms to identify participants for this study. The protection and security of data are part of the ethical responsibilities of a qualitative researcher (Drysdale, 2020). Researchers use reflective journals as a pedagogical instrument that promotes their ability to reflect, criticize, and self-analyze (Bashan & Holsblat, 2017). I used the reflective journal to self-analyze and sort out views not aligned with the research data to mitigate any adverse effects on the study. Furthermore, I have safely stored all data collected in a password-protected electronic device. All hard copies of the data collected are held in a confidential file, locked in a fireproof safe, and accessible to me alone. I will destroy both paper documents and electronic data after 5 years.

Data Analysis Technique

A qualitative researcher engages in data analysis to interpret the meaning of the data by identifying patterns and themes to answer the central research question (Denzin & Lincoln, 2018). According to Yin (2018), researchers use different data analysis processes, including triangulation. There are four types of triangulations: (a) data triangulation where data collection is in different periods, (b) investigator triangulation involving multiple researchers, (c) theory triangulation utilizing several theories, and (d) methodological triangulation using more than one data source (Abdalla et al., 2018; Fusch et al., 2018). Researchers use methodological triangulation to enrich and enhance the trustworthiness of data collected by reducing bias, strengthening the data analysis process, and ensuring a deep understanding of a phenomenon (Farquhar et al., 2020; Yarney et al., 2021). In this study, I analyzed data using the methodological triangulation is collecting and analyzing data from more than one source, such as interviews, reviews of archival documents, field notes, and observation (Shrestha & Bhatta, 2018).

According to Yin (2018), a logical and sequential data analysis process consists of five stages: (a) compiling, (b) disassembling, (c) reassembling, (d) interpreting, and (e) concluding. The researcher should take full responsibility for the data analysis process. Hemming et al. (2021) highlighted the obligatory role of the researcher in ensuring a robust data analysis through direct involvement and personal reflection in the process. I collected data from the participants using semistructured interview questions (see Appendix E) and documentary data from company publications, policy and procedure manuals, and technological innovation documents. I transcribed the field notes into the computer and then imported the collated raw data into the NVivo 12 software tool for analysis. Researchers compare responses from participants to make comparisons in emerging themes with each interview (Barrett & Twycross, 2018). After applying the methodological triangulation process to merge primary and secondary data, I coded the collected data into related themes using NVivo 12 software. I presented data to participants for member checking to ensure authentication and minimize the threat of bias. Finally, I conducted writing of the data results and findings in alignment with the research question and conceptual framework.

I transcribed and analyzed the data from the semistructured interviews for common themes by comparing responses from participants in a hierarchical way to establish a correlation between the conceptual framework, literature resources, and research findings. I used member checking to authenticate the data analysis process. The conceptual framework for this study was transformational leadership theory. Using qualitative data analysis software such as NVivo can significantly increase proficiency in qualitative analysis and assist in managing and analyzing complex data (Bergeron & Gaboury, 2020). Researchers use the NVivo software tool in qualitative research to facilitate coding a large volume of textual data in nodes, showing commonalities among the thematic nodes and organizing data in hierarchical order (Lowe et al., 2018). Using NVivo to analyze data enables researchers to add codes during data analysis to the point of saturation and enhances the reliability of a study (Harif & Hoe, 2018). For this study, I used NVivo 12 software to code, categorize, and build hierarchies of themes that provided meaningful insights related to the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technology.

Reliability and Validity

Reliability in qualitative research refers to the ability to replicate a study and maintain consistency (Saunders et al., 2018). Validity depends on the context and purpose of the study and its findings concerning the methods used to conclude the results (FitzPatrick, 2019). According to Yin (2018), reliability involves a researcher demonstrating that other researchers achieved similar results by repeating the data collection process. Reliability and validity in qualitative studies consist of credibility, transferability, dependability, and confirmability (Nowell et al., 2017; Mendonca-Alves et al., 2019). Qualitative researchers could enhance reliability and validity through data saturation, document review, member checking, reflexivity, and triangulation (Caretta & Pérez, 2019; Madill & Sullivan, 2018; Stenfors et al., 2020).

Reliability

Reliability within qualitative studies relates to the subject(s), and object(s) studied and how they relate to the truth of the findings (Huttunen & Kakkori, 2020). To ensure the reliability of research findings and the analysis provided, researchers should present the data in a manner that demonstrates clarity, coherence, and relevance (Caycho-Rodríguez et al., 2021). Qualitative researchers use dependability to establish reliability (Silverman, 2016). The dependability of research findings in qualitative research could allow the researcher to accurately depict a model dependent on the research results (Aizpurua et al., 2020). A researcher can establish dependability by having multiple individuals' codes and interpreting the data and annotating the data that they both agreed upon (Marshall & Rossman, 2016).

Dependability

Dependability within qualitative research involves whether the researcher consistently uses prolonged engagement, persistent observation, data triangulation, and member checking (Korstjens & Moser, 2018). Dependability reflects the transparency and accuracy of research procedures, consistency in research methodology, data collection, and data analysis (Tong & Dew, 2016). According to Yin (2018), a researcher can use an interview protocol to record observational data and ensure dependability. Researchers use prolonged engagement to narrow down risks associated with the study and mitigate the risks to ensure reliability (Chemweno et al., 2018). Persistent observation is the least commonly used method of securing the truthfulness of research findings, while data triangulation is the most preferred method (Liao & Hitchcock, 2018). I used the interview protocol to enhance the credibility of the data and establish the reliability of the study.

Member checking involves allowing the participants to validate the results of transcribed data or research findings for accuracy and, if necessary, provide corrections to the researcher to achieve accurate information (Brear, 2019). Data triangulation consists of multiple theories and methods for obtaining numerous data sources to produce a clear and concise understanding of a phenomenon and validate the integrity of the findings (Odiri, 2019). To establish dependability, I used an interview protocol to record data,

double-checked data collected through member checking, and conducted triangulation using multiple sources to collect data.

Validity

Validity in qualitative research refers to the suitability of the research instruments, such as methodology and design, for exploring the phenomenon under study (Yin, 2018). In qualitative research, validity refers to truthfulness in research quality and being justifiable, relevant, meaningful, and well-founded (Cypress, 2017; Dikko, 2016). Researchers define validity as rigorously choosing a suitable research methodology and justifiably applying the preferred method to answer a research question (Collingridge & Gantt, 2019). The critical aspects of validity in a qualitative study are credibility, transferability, and confirmability (FitzPatrick, 2019; Moon, 2019).

Credibility

The credibility of a study depends on the accuracy, consistency, and interconnections of the concepts with research findings (Yin, 2018). Credibility refers to the value and believability of study findings and can be achieved through prolonged engagement and persistent observation to learn the context of the phenomenon (Korstjens & Moser, 2018). A researcher can validate research findings through data verification, analysis, and interpretation to establish credibility and authenticity (Andersen et al., 2018). Multiple sources of evidence, such as triangulation and member checking, are other strategies a researcher may use to achieve trustworthiness and credibility (Ellis, 2019). To ensure credibility, I used semistructured interview questions (see Appendix E) to collect data and member checking to validate participants' responses.

Transferability

Transferability is the extent to which the findings of a qualitative study apply to other contexts, settings, or participants (Denzin & Lincoln, 2018). Transferability is an alternative quality criterion for external validity (Saunders et al., 2019). By using the strategy of thick descriptions, the researcher provides in-depth details of the phenomenon and the methodologies of the study (Cypress, 2017). I provided a detailed description of the research questions, design, context, findings, and interpretations to ensure transferability and establish the validity of the study. I also adhered to the research design's data collection and analysis techniques, used interview protocol (see Appendix A), observed participants, and reached data saturation.

Confirmability

Confirmability refers to the data's neutrality and accuracy (Korstjens & Moser, 2018). Researchers should acknowledge personal assumptions, beliefs, and attitudes when establishing confirmability and defining audit trails (Abdalla et al., 2018). Researchers can achieve confirmability by including in-text citations, quotes, and supporting references in the study while justifying the new findings within the discussion and conclusion of the study (Stenfors et al., 2020). According to Wicaksono et al. (2021), researchers could use thematic data analysis, thick and rich data, blended data, data investigator triangulation, member checking, and audit trails to achieve confirmability. I used data triangulation, member checking, and rich data description to establish confirmability and enhance the study's validity.

Data Saturation

Reaching data saturation is essential to the qualitative research method to ensure the study includes adequate quality data (Fofana et al., 2020). Researchers achieve data saturation by continuously sampling and analyzing all data associated with the study until no new findings can be identified (Aldiabat & Le Navenec, 2018). The data saturation in a study could enhance the validity and reliability of qualitative research (Cypress, 2017). Guest et al. (2020) found that researchers could reach data saturation after five to six interviews when no additional new information is emerging. In qualitative research, researchers could achieve data saturation through multiple data collection methods such as observations, interviews, and documents review (Denzin & Lincoln, 2018). In this study, I conducted semistructured interviews with the participants until no new themes emerged to ensure data saturation.

Transition and Summary

Section 2 contains the purpose statement, my role as the researcher, and eligibility criteria for participants. Section 2 also includes discussions of the research method, design, population, and sampling procedures. In addition, I discussed ethical research, highlighted data collection instruments and techniques, data organization techniques, and data analysis, and concluded with validity and reliability of the study. In Section 3, I present the research findings, explain how they apply to professional practice, and explain the study's positive social change implications. Section 3 includes recommendations for action and future research, my reflections on the doctoral study process, and summary and study conclusions.

Section 3: Application to Professional Practice and Implications for Change

In this section, I present an overview of the study and presentation of findings on leadership strategies that supply chain managers use for adopting new innovative technologies to stay competitive. I used observations from participants as well as the transformational leadership theory. This section includes applications to professional practice, implications for social change, recommendations for action and future research, reflections, and summary and study conclusions.

Introduction

The purpose of this qualitative multiple case study was to explore leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in terms of adopting new innovative technologies to stay competitive in rapidly changing global business environments. The conceptual framework was the transformational leadership theory, and the overarching research question was: What leadership strategies do supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies? Six business managers from different supply chain companies in Atlanta, Georgia who have successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies in their companies participated in this study. They provided primary data to answer the overarching research question. The primary data source was participant responses to semistructured interview questions. Secondary data sources include field notes, change management protocols, IT deployment strategies, peer mentoring plans, minutes of strategic planning meetings, and company archival documents.

I achieved data saturation when no additional information emerged from interviews and company document reviews. Based on participants' responses to interview questions, I identified four themes: people management, communication, leadership style and relationship, and coaching and empowerment. The transformational leadership theory was used to provide a better understanding of leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in terms of adopting new innovative technologies to stay competitive in rapidly changing global business environments. Study findings indicate some supply chain managers in Atlanta, Georgia use a combination of leadership strategies in order to adopt new innovative technologies and achieve longterm sustainability and profitability.

Presentation of the Findings

The overarching research question for this study was: What leadership strategies do supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies? Four themes, (a) people management, (b) communication, (c) leadership style and relationship, and (d) coaching and empowerment, were identified and discussed—the discussion compared findings from previous research that relates to the conceptual frameworks. Many studies have been conducted in the supply chain industry; However, the literature search shows few relevant studies have been completed recently. Alsmadi et al. (2023) examined the adoption of blockchain technology in supply chain and concluded supply chain management recognized that perceived ease, Inter-organizational trust, perceived usefulness, data transparency, and confidentiality had a significant impact on the adoption of technology in the supply chain industry. Mukherjee and Chittipaka (2022) analyzed the factors that impacted the adoption of intelligent agent technology in the supply chain industry supply chain industry supply chain industry and reported managers identified factors like top management support, skilled employees, and IT awareness to help the adoption process of innovative

technology to gain a competitive advantage. Searcy et al. (2022) stated supply chain managers must commit to shifting their transparency initiatives from instruments of accountability to meaningful change and think holistically in their views to drive technology adoption. The research conducted by Rehman Khan et al. (2022) suggested supply chain managers apply digital transformation and smart technologies to achieve sustainable performance. I combined the data from semi structured interviews and company archival documents to analyze the results.

In the following subsections, I will present the four themes that emerged from my thematic analysis of the company's archival documents and participants' responses to the interview questions.

Theme 1: People Management

The first theme was people management, which involves recognizing the importance of people in terms of change management when adopting innovative technology. The theme of people management was mentioned by all participants, which helped me understand the importance and role of this theme. All participants affirmed that using people management as a leadership strategy was vital in terms of successfully adopting new innovative technologies.

In identifying strategies supply chain managers use to adopt innovative technologies, participants highlighted people management as a significant strategy that is employed when implementing innovative technologies. Lack of team spirit leads to lack of motivation, and transformational leadership styles positively influence innovation (Tian et al., 2018). P1 said, "People come first, as part of my strategy, people for me, is everything, because without the right people, even if you implement the best technology, somebody needs to understand, execute, support, improve, and work with it." According to P1, "You always need people regardless of the technology; people always matter." P1 also claimed, "The team can get a work-life balance to foster collaboration through people picking up work from each other, taking breaks, and things like that."

Disruptive technologies led to business managers embracing these technologies to remain competitive by capturing new markets. Technology leads to synchronization that promotes collaboration across value chains in order to achieve cost savings, inventory management, and competitive advantage (Blossey et al., 2019). P2 stated, "I prefer to work with teams with their expertise that we are aligned with and have built trust." P2 also said, "I know I can trust at least 90% that I can manage by listening to how the team is progressing, guiding the way if the team is off track." P3 claimed, "I noticed getting all the people involved early helps team members express themselves to be able to cover their needs, and because they have had input into the process, the stakeholders feel more ownership in the outcome." P3 also stated, "When people have ownership over the goal, they feel more consulted as though their opinions are valued, and they speak up when things could go off the rails." P4 stated, "I ensure collaboration across teams to get enduser buy-in." According to P6, "I deal with how I engage with people." The diverse ways participants applied their leadership strategies and resources to implement and overcome challenges when adopting innovative technologies fostered collaboration and employee buy-in. The review of archival documents from participants showed a diverse and crossfunctional team dynamics.

Firms found using human resources was significant in terms of ensuring the successful adoption of innovative technologies to remain sustainable. Teamwork is essential to firm success; hence, there is a need for leaders to plan, organize, and monitor creative teams that are tasked with idea generation, exploration, and experimentation (Super, 2020). In terms of challenges encountered while implementing leadership strategies, P2 noted, "Collaboration was the biggest challenge." P3 explained, "People collaboration can help ensure fostering of good skills and ensure appropriate goals achieved." Moreover, according to P3, "When implementing something new, not necessarily just software, it is important to build a team with different skills in different areas." Participants cited the complexity of innovative technology as a factor that made collaboration challenging. According to P4, "You can overcome technology and implementation issues; it is the people side when you run into resistance that is always the most challenging." P5 asserted, "I always get alignment within the teams when we brainstorm to come up with new ideas." P6 said, "I think that people should collaborate." P6 advised against pride and arrogance and said, "when people do not share information, you create a culture where people compete against each other, so they are not sharing information out of pride and arrogance." Participants acknowledged that people management is critical in terms of adopting new innovative technologies.

Organizational leaders strive to benchmark the adoption of innovative technology to ascertain its proper use and deployment. Business managers recognize their followers through simulation, preconceived notions, calculated risks, creativity, innovation, and collaboration that fosters creative, independent thinking (Alqatawenah, 2018). The participants commented on innovative challenges were addressed. P1 opined, "We collaborate by working through the problems irrespective of the situation." Providing further narrative, P1 added, "Another strategy I use to overcome challenges is consulting people that have faced similar challenges to leverage their experience, lessons learned, and resolution steps." P4 asserted, "To overcome the obstacle, I try to identify who those people are as soon as possible." On further inquiry, P4 explained, "Once you know who they are, then your goal is to work with the project managers and the resistors managers if you need to get them involved to figure out how to get them past that resistance." P6 noted, "I encourage people to collaborate and, most importantly, implement the tool that causes people to be an enabler to people."

Responding to how participants implemented the leadership strategies for adopting innovative technologies, P1 remarked, "The team will be excited and encourage their peers to keep pushing." P4 affirmed, "So, I had a solid background there in people management." P5 commented, "I mean to get the team's understanding of the requirements to avoid misunderstanding." P6 said, "Many people do not know how to transform incrementally towards a goal, and even if they know what that goal is, it is rare." P6 advised, "I worked with every team to get them to a certain level of proficiency, with advanced roadmaps, agile collaboration, and practices." P6 stated, "We are working with the engineering team to have them understand that waterfall is not the best way to deliver a software problem." Tian et al. (2018) encouraged managers to foster collaboration that builds team spirit leading to synergy in innovation and increased efficiency. Organizational leaders operationalize dynamic capabilities to drive innovation and increase profitability (Schoemaker et al., 2018). The participants further established that implementing an effective people management strategy increases collaboration, support, ownership, motivation, team bonding, and trust in team members.

Business leaders design their supply chain to influence the total cost by integrating their value chain to foster collaboration. Digital transformation of the supply chains enables organizations to foster collaboration between internal and external systems and organizations (Tavana et al., 2022). Supply chain managers integrate robots into their operations to reduce human errors and increase collaboration with human resources to increase warehouse capacity by 20% (Blossey et al., 2019). Responding to the measurement of the effectiveness of the strategies, P1 said, "I believe in building trust at every level for people to say I will always be there professionally, and I will do what I say." P3 asserted, "I could see the result of my strategy in real-time as the team became high performing with improved collaboration." P4 affirmed, "There is a measure of the people's happiness scale. When you look at people's engagement, you could say if they are excited." Participant P5 stated, "I believe simulation works very well, but you must have the right people on the requirements to symbolize things. You must have an effective management team."

I explored the effectiveness of the strategies by asking participants which leadership strategies have been the most effective in adopting innovative technologies. Teamwork is essential to a firm's success, hence, the need for leaders to plan, organize, and monitor creative teams tasked with idea generation, exploration, and experimentation (Super, 2020). In response, the participants noted investment in people development led to increased commitment which helped the change management process. Participants collectively confirmed collaboration as one of the most effective strategies. "I would say collaboration because no one person or group knows everything when you have something complicated like implementing innovative technology." "Collaboration is always the key that I focus on the most." The alignment of organizational and employee goals created a domino effect. Employees are motivated when they have clarity and inclusion, which improves understanding as people can see why it is beneficial for them to do what they want or what is needed. P4 confirmed a well-defined process was the most effective as the team understands the benefits of the change. The participants echoed stakeholder management as a critical strategy as listening and understanding their needs helps increase buy-in, which drives adoption from top to bottom.

Employees learn about innovative technologies during implementation and attitudes toward the technology are formed at this stage. Firm investment in emerging technologies gives leaders access to information, reduces costs, and increases collaboration and the quality of products (Agrawal & Narain, 2018). P1 noted, "The people I lead play a part in the strategy to apply; I introduce a few components from implementation, support, and development to foster collaboration." P2 stated, "The collaboration helped build trust with executives who would trust them to tell the truth and relied on them to make decisions for the firm as the team designing did not understand the issues and why this is important." P3 asserted recognition is critical to increased motivation which drives adoption. P4 explained, "We use Microsoft teams technology to create channels and groups to collaborate." "Collaboration is super important, but the

methods you use to do that are equally important." Providing additional narrative, P6 said, "People tend to think in silos and miss the collaborative opportunities for those practices." "I will say that wherever collaboration does not exist, it is like this quote I have heard - cooperate or perish."

Positive attitudes may help reinforce the use of innovative technology to gain a competitive advantage. Agrawal and Narain (2018), Blossey et al. (2019), and Tian et al. (2018) stated managers use people management in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive. The study findings demonstrated that supply chain managers used people management as a leadership strategy in implementing and embracing technology. However, analysis of data highlighted the instrumental role played by leadership in ensuring that the organization prepares for change and that collaborative execution, learning, IT utilization, and skills are maintained.

Theme 2: Communication

Business managers sought to adopt innovative technology individually before gaining organizational commitment. Supply chain managers align supply chain management with big data analytics to impact innovative development in their organizations (Bag et al., 2020). Puni et al. (2018) noted that constructs such as communication are customized considerations of leadership behavior for evaluating the impact of leadership style within supply chain management and its influence on employee performance. The theme of communication emerged from all the interview questions. All participants attested to successfully adopting innovative technology using communication as a leadership strategy.

Participants agreed that effective communication is critical in adopting new innovative technologies. Uslu (2019) explained that charismatic leaders have high communication skills to persuade their followers to buy their ideas which are crucial to organizational success. P1 posited, "communication is the second component of a strategy commonly used." "I will go and add communications by providing 360 feedbacks, I will give my weekly, daily, and monthly feedback around the clock." According to P1, "I use all communication channels within my company to publish awards and recognize great work done, as well as bonuses and make sure the right people are seeing it." The participants confirmed communication leads to transparency and keeping people informed on projects' activities and scope to build trust. P1 confirmed that keeping people engaged with communication flow makes convincing or bringing people along easy. P2 stated, "We collaborated with the client's business and technical team in real-time using different strategies such as effective communication." The data gathered showed that communication within systems, businesses, and processes helped drive the implementation and adoption of innovative technology.

Participants responded to the question about their leadership style and its effectiveness. According to P3 said, "I would say my leadership style is communication and not just communicating outward for people to know what is happening but inward such that I can incorporate any feedback as soon as possible." P4 explained, "When I approach any change, the first thing is to engage and communicate with the end users to ensure they know what and why we are doing and how it will benefit them." Explaining further, "The other thing I do is to engage with the senior leadership in communication meetings or emails where the end users know that senior leadership cares and knows what is happening because that shows the project is important to the organization". P4 concluded, "I coordinate those conversations and ensure that we drive engagement from both the end user and senior leadership so that everybody understands that we are moving in this direction, and everybody is on board, and their voices matter".

Business managers implement yearly improvements to innovations through new product and process launch for longterm sustainability. Supply chain firms use communication to achieve supply chains with intelligence, flexibility, and sustainability (Oh & Jeong, 2019). P1 posited, "So one of the challenges is working with other leaders with a different mindset and style of leadership; I believe in communication, and somebody says, 'Well, I do not feel the need to communicate everything.'" The most common challenge I have seen is communication." P3 explained, "So when implementing something new, not necessarily just software, it is important to communicate with people so they can call out challenges before they happen." My review of the archival documents revealed that supply managers had implemented some communication programs to create awareness and engage stakeholders to increase the adoption of innovative technology. The research data showed effective communication led to continuous technology updates with new and enhanced functionalities.

Organizational leaders must achieve cost savings and sustainability by upgrading existing technology or adopting innovative technology. The participants responded by addressing the challenges they faced when adopting new technology, and P1 stated, "I have had a situation with people pushing back on something, saying they do not want to do this, and communication has helped me overcome these challenges." Attesting, "I had to travel a lot to have in-person communication. I ensure I stay engaged with external and internal customers." "Communication has been helping me navigate difficult challenges." According to P1, "Better communication is tied to people because having a clear objective of why I am doing something or why we need to do something; even if there is pushback, we will likely figure it out and come to a resolution". P2 posited, "Effective communication has helped me address the resistance I faced from the clients." In response P3 stated, "I am heavily dependent on communication; The first thing is to let everyone know that their opinions are valued; Then, I try to have large groups of collaborative feedback, insight gathering, and one-on-one group feedback sessions," P3 affirmed, "I was able to schedule a meeting with everyone in the same room to communicate and find the root cause; We were able to overcome some of the challenges." P5 posited, "Most challenges are directly related to basic communications." Firms recognize the benefits of implementing innovative technology and the need to stay competitive.

The participants explored different methods and styles of communication to foster collaboration and get stakeholder interest and confirmed the positive outcomes. The participants emphasized how communication helped them overcome challenges encountered. P2 explained, "I communicated through several mediums until the team understood the benefit of the proposed approach, and that was how I was able to implement the warehouse management system." P3 remarked, "I think the first part is that communication is not the same for every person. So, understanding the best ways

that people communicate is sometimes a challenge to get a different communication style per person."

Moreover, "People should be allowed to speak up in meetings by giving time specifically for feedback and contribution." According to P3, "communication styles are not limited to verbally expressing feedback but giving people all the information, they need when they need it such that they can speak intelligently on your behalf." P4 stated, "I approach every change that I need to implement by communicating to the core team that is going to be involved in the change for the end users." On further inquiry, P4 explained, "that communication you do at the beginning is important because they should know the need for the change and helps you overcome roadblocks faster." P5 said, "I have addressed these challenges by ensuring we have clear requirements, and we communicate across stakeholders, so everyone understands the expectation." The participant's response showed the importance of communication early in the project as a strategy for overcoming challenges and resistance to adopting innovative technology.

Organizations must assess new technology for features that benefit the firm and introduce measurement metrics to ascertain effectiveness. The participants said they measured the effectiveness of their leadership strategies, and P1 stated, "I would measure that from a strategy perspective of asking the customer if we communicated well on lagging things?" P1 summarized, "That constant communication and transparency summed up by the customers, which leads them to give reviews." In response to. P3 stated, "People feel comfortable giving feedback, and with open communication, the feedback continues, and those conversations end with more feedback." P4 used target

communications to measure effectiveness, and "the communication methods are going to be different depending on the group, so I would not say that there is necessarily a single way to communicate." According to P4, "We ensure we are communicating the message properly and correctly; when we have different people making communication meetings, we want to ensure that those are consistent across the groups." P6 said "Meeting and communicating with people is essential." The participants highlighted the importance of well-designed strategic plans supporting the integration and sustenance of innovative technology.

Business leaders acknowledge poor communication results in stakeholder resistance, which affects technology adoption. P2 noted, "Our strategy was communication, persistence, and ensuring the leaders had all the information to make the right decision." P4 mentioned, "So, I think when you think about the leadership strategy, communication is super important." P5 advised on the need to discuss with customers before implementing a solution and concluded that "it is a healthy conversation." The participant's responses indicate that supply chain managers use communication as a leadership strategy in adopting new innovative technology to remain competitive in the global business environment.

Theme 3: Leadership Style and Relationship

The firm leadership style is crucial to achieving its business goals and objective to remain sustainable. Organizations need to understand creative leadership on the diffusion of innovation to adopt intellectual stimulation, supportive leadership, and personal recognition (Carreiro & Oliveira, 2019). Idealized influence is a leader's ability to

convince followers and be a role model to subordinates (Bass,1985). The leadership style and relationship theme emerged from exploring the participants' lived experiences of the leadership strategies they have implemented, and the challenges faced and addressed. According to P1, "Leading by example, which is walk the talk, practice what you preach." "So, there are tactical strategies that include delegating tasks to them and challenging them. One of the things I love the most about my leadership style is coaching and mentoring people." P1 advised, "Then, make sure they get recognized and get the rewards they worked for or the accomplishments they deserve." The analysis showed the importance of motivation in any implementation's output quality.

Supply chain managers must adopt an effective leadership strategy to yield the benefits and investment of innovative technology. There is a good association between leadership styles that provide intellectual stimulation and workers' creative output (Alqatawenah, 2018). Ahmad and Karadas (2021) presented a connection between leadership and the state of the organization. Organizations achieve superior performance through employee motivation linked to leadership (Yildiz & Sezen, 2019). All participants acknowledged using leadership style and relationship as a strategy for adopting new innovative technology. Leaders of intellectual stimulation advocate for comparison and metaphors to help people think more creatively (Jensen et al., 2020). The transformational leader connects the vision of a business and the objectives to the personal standards of the workers (Zhu et al., 2019). The findings align with the transformational leadership style's effectiveness in driving technology adoption. The participants acknowledge the importance of people in achieving organizational success and longterm sustainability. P5 posited, "My leadership style is all about the people because many companies lose focus on their people." According to P5, "For me, if you want to be successful in what you do, believe in your people, give them the tools to be successful, and encourage them to come up with new ideas or solutions." P5 affirmed, "Then, bring it to the table, debate, align, and encourage them to execute. I create models to ensure that whatever solution is the right fit for our customers." Employees were more committed to their jobs and experienced less stress when the managers used intellectual stimulation leadership style (Jensen et al., 2020)." P6 stated, "I would say that I am a servant and transformational leader because, as a young leader, you are trying to understand who you are in the sense of leadership." The participants collectively agreed that relationship building is critical to the success of any initiative.

Business managers acknowledge employees achieve increased motivation through their individual goals and growth opportunities in the organization. Business leaders should understand team members' personal goals and align organizational goals to set expectations and achieve overall success (Shaheen et al., 2019). P1 noted, "The internal challenge of resistance faced when implementing my leadership strategy involves motivating people to develop and grow for their benefit, which will help the team and the organization." P2 narrated how leadership was vital in software implementation and asserted, "The leadership style is the biggest challenge." P6 emphasized, "I use my personality, knowledge, and skill to manage some of these challenges." According to Naidoo et al. (2019), rewards, resources, and leadership vision are the three latent leadership variables that positively relate to innovation. The participants noted lack of employee commitment impedes the integration and sustenance of innovative technologies.

Organizational leaders invest in technologies to give employees access to tools that improve operational efficiency and effectiveness. Yang and Yang (2018) advised firms to adopt product and process innovation to pursue a new market for long-term sustainability and argued that transformational leadership significantly facilitates explorative innovation. According to P2, "The success in the first code drop increased the customer confidence and helped my relationships with my customers significantly." P5 commented, "So, having empathy and making sure that you have things in place in case somebody leaves is not always the last resort." According to P5, "I allow the team to talk about whatever they want because that makes them also care about what we are doing as they feel the leader cares and he is listening." Leaders that adopt the leadership style pay meticulous attention to the requirements of the workforce and teach the employees to bring about long-term sustainable change (Prabowo et al., 2018). Organizational stakeholders must be motivated to learn the new technology, as a lack of technical knowledge and computer illiteracy among employees may impede the successful adoption of innovative technology.

Business leaders increase the likelihood of success when implementing technology by ensuring their leadership style aligns with the firms' longterm goal. Leadership style is an amalgamation of many features and personality quirks that leaders use to build relationships with team members (Chen et al., 2021). The participants highlighted the importance of relationships and their effects on the outcome of their projects. According to P2, "So, we have tried to reduce the time spent in meetings; for me, building relationships across your peers, meaning if you want to be innovative, you can ensure that your peers have the same thought process and ideas." P6 stated, "I think that the most effective is the innovative leader because the innovative leader encompasses so many other things; I have organic professional, transparent relationships with my team". Charismatic leaders encourage teams to collaborate and develop a sense of belonging, leading to long-term sustainability (Adnan & Valliappan, 2019; Vasilescu, 2019). P6 stated" I am transparent in saying that it is essential for me to learn how to convey what I need to convey and to build bridges".

The participants cited the complexity of innovative technology and technical expertise as a factor in tailoring their leadership style. Supply chain leaders strive to align their leadership style with the company culture and people. P2 affirmed "To me, relationships are super important that's the thing that I focus on the most is how to save this or how do I keep this relationship strong?" Leaders can alter leadership styles to ensure improved results (Chen et al., 2021). P1 attested, "I discovered my leadership style several years ago, and I figured a freestyle by seeing how the conversation goes, and then I decide I need to influence action." According to P1, "The strategy component is leading by example through working the talk. I can design my strategy based on the team needs, job description, and organizational objectives." P1 posited, "For me, the leadership style drives my strategy. The objective drives how I apply my staff to the strategy." participant P3 stated, "If there is a bureaucratic reason why I cannot provide a promotion or a raise, people still feel motivated." According to P3, "Motivation is different for every person, and motivation could be something that, as a business leader, I could provide maybe a promotion or a raise or visibility."

The participants' responses and archival documents reviewed outlined the firms change management strategies that included team building activities which emphasized the importance of leadership style and relationship building. According to Chen et al. (2021), Prabowo et al. (2018), and Yildiz and Sezen (2019), managers use leadership style and relationships as a strategy for adopting a change for longterm sustainability. The study findings demonstrated supply chain managers' leadership style, and relationship with stakeholders increase support for integrating innovative technology into organizational operations.

Theme 4: Coaching and Empowerment

The theme of coaching and empowerment strategy emerged from all the interview questions, with five participants attesting to the use of coaching and empowerment in driving the adoption of new innovative technology. Puni et al. (2018) noted that constructs such as mentoring and coaching, recognition, self-development, and communication were customized to consider leadership behavior for evaluating the impact of leadership style within supply chain management and its influence on employee performance. P1 stated, "I give them opportunities to do whatever they need to grow. I will guide and support, mentor, and show them the ropes, functionally, technically, and network." Mentoring provides leadership development to form connections, manage company politics and culture, and communicate effectively with workers (Prabowo et al., 2018). Business managers should clearly communicate the role of technology in an organization to avoid confusion and resistance, hence the need to coach and empower team members.

Supply chain leaders design a strategy that does not entirely shut down old systems and freak out users. The managers strive to slowly introduce innovative technology and gain support from stakeholders through coaching and empowerment. Coaching enables employees to achieve improved performance and satisfaction, reducing employee turnover (Yin et al., 2019). P2 asserted, "I would say that my preferred leadership strategy is coaching." According to P2, "The coaching strategy worked for my most successful projects, and my team learned a lot from my coaching, which helps our customers. We empower each other, which made things more efficient and increased our likelihood of success." P6 remarked, "Even as a young leader, I am mentoring younger leaders." Furthermore, P1 noted, "It is easy to get into conflicts with peers because they may not be of the same leadership style, and they may be a bit more try to walk the back doors of things and believe in telling the truth."

The participants expressed their strategy of empowering team members and confirmed challenges faced by team members not believing in themselves, which creates additional work and coaching opportunities for them to realize their potential. P2 echoed, "I consider myself a technical coach. We worked with the client to conduct integration testing before code delivery, and the challenge was getting the client to understand the project. I coached them to be successful". P3 opined, "I think it is important to consider training which is important for people to understand a tactical view of success in their roles." Continuing, P3 attested, "People feel comfortable executing at a level that may be different from what they were doing previously." Transformational leaders consider unexpected problems and losses as educational resources; hence, learning is a leader's focus (Boukamcha, 2019). P2 confirmed the coaching strategy, "I had to educate them about agile practices and how it was beneficial, and it will help increase the quality of our output and a quick turnaround of issues found." Some participants stated, "I have used the strategy of empowering people has helped me to get the buy-in as we transition to the cloud. I would empower people to innovate within the quality technologies we are exploring." The findings showed supply chain managers exhibited coaching and empowering traits to build employee trust and drive adoption. The managers confirmed they recommended and sponsored innovative training to empower employees. The archival documents reviewed emphasized that lack of feedback and training demotivates employees, which leads to slower adoption and employee turnover.

The findings showed investment in employee growth empowered them to execute and explore, which led to faster adoption and transition as they became the ambassadors for the change. According to P4, "Once you complete and go through iteration testing, it is a nice way to look at it because you can break down each group in a separate assessment. You may have to revisit things and tweak training and reinforce it through further education". P6 stated, "I did the socialization in training, then leveraged on a scorecard process to do a retrospective." P6 commented, "Our CPO saw that it was essential for us to have product managers trained in the way of doing their work which was powerful." P1 stated, "If I had to put it under one, commitment to empowering, coach, and mentor." According to P1, "I can empower my team to enable them to use the technology; the people development aspect allows me to empower folks to go into the world and explore what is new in the industry, market, economy, and outside the continent." The participants all attested to the development of people as the biggest win for them and the most effective in terms of coaching, paying attention, building the right affiliation, and empathy. From the company documents, I observed that participants P1, P6, and P4 established regular feedback with their team members, which reduced employee burnout and increased the adoption rate.

I explored leadership strategies supply chain business managers use to integrate and sustain innovative technologies. P1 commented, "Empowering them by supporting their development effort, whether formal or Informal education through hands-on learning, has been the most effective tool in my strategic arsenal." The participant's responses to the interview questions aligned with Boukamcha (2019), Prabowo et al. (2018), and Yin et al. (2019) statements that supply chain managers use coaching and empowerment in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive. My review of the company archival documents revealed that supply chain managers implemented coaching and training programs to improve the adoption of innovative technology. As applied in this study, 83% of the participants attested to using coaching and empowerment as a leadership strategy in adopting innovative technology to achieve longterm sustainability.

Relating Study Findings to Transformational Leadership Theory

The study findings indicate that supply chain managers could enhance adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment by implementing leadership strategies based on transformational leadership theory. All participants confirmed relationship building, collaboration, communication, coaching, empowerment, and the different traits associated with the transformational leadership theory used to drive the adoption of new innovative technology in their organization. P6 stated, "It is about empowering others to discover the leader in themselves, so when people discover the leader within them, that redounds to the excellence of the project, the program, and the mission. So, that is the number one thing for me as a leader. If I do not do that, it does not matter what else I do because I am not working with the strongest team that can if I do not do that". Idealized influence is a leader's ability to convince followers and be a role model to subordinates (Bass, 1985). P1 remarked, "I tell my team members what they need to do to get us to talk about it regularly. I would love to see people developing and growing. It is a passion for me." Transformational leaders pay attention to each employee by directly listening to the issues that workers are facing and helping those individuals (Faupel & Süß, 2019). Business leaders align their leadership strategies with the business objectives to enhance and improve their services to satisfy the needs of their customers.

As applied in this study, all participants affirmed using leadership strategies to enhance the adoption of new innovative technology in their organization. Transformational leaders improve organizational performance by working closely with team members to identify and implement necessary changes (Northouse, 2019). Transformational leaders motivate their followers to achieve individual and corporate goals, increasing employee satisfaction and reducing employee turnover (Zhu et al., 2019). As applied in this study, all participants' responses echoed Chen et al.'s (2021) and Zekhnini et al.'s (2020) statements on using leadership strategies based on the transformational leadership theory in adopting new innovative technology to improve operational efficiency and increase profitability. All participants confirmed the leadership style played a significant role in the success of their business initiatives and overall team strategy.

Firms invest in technology to attain competitiveness, sustainability, and profitability, hence ensuring their leadership style aligns with the corporate strategy. Transformational leaders prioritize the needs of their followers over theirs to help them be the best versions of themselves (Asbari, 2021). All participants used a combination of leadership strategies involving people management, communication, leadership style, relationship, coaching, and empowerment to influence their employees to adopt new innovative technology to stay profitable in the business environment. As applied in this study, all participants expressed the importance of ensuring the employees know the technology to help drive adoption. The study findings presented a need to enhance business processes and operations by informing all stakeholders before introducing innovative technology. The business managers confirmed the success criteria for any technology implemented are measured if the requirements for accessibility, usefulness, comfortability with the system, and efficiency of use are met.

Applications to Professional Practice

The study findings may help organizational leaders, including governmental and non-governmental agencies, business owners, and entrepreneurs, gain helpful information on leadership strategies for adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. Understanding the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in adopting new innovative technology is crucial to staying competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. Supply chain managers should advance their business environment with technology to improve the welfare of society, achieve long-term sustainability, contribute to growth, and reduce business risks (Mangla et al., 2020). Technology has significantly improved the effectiveness and efficiency of supply chain operations (Sánchez-Flores et al., 2020). The public might learn from this study's findings the leadership strategies for adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment.

Based on the study findings, the most significant contribution to professional practice may be identifying potential leadership strategies that supply chain managers use for adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. Organizational leadership plays a crucial role in the long-term sustainability that improves employment rate, living conditions, and socio-economic growth, hence the need for appropriate leadership strategies (McCrea, 2020). As applied in this study, supply chain managers should establish leadership strategies that foster collaboration and relationship building for adopting new innovative technology to stay
competitive. Leaders' behaviors affect employees' performance, trust, job satisfaction, and growth in the business atmosphere (Chen et al., 2021). Supply chain managers could use this study's results to understand the role of inappropriate leadership strategy in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. The knowledge gained on leadership strategies may enable supply chain managers to implement new innovative technology in their business operations successfully.

The findings from this study could contribute to the literature on supply chain management and provide supply chain managers with new insight regarding leadership strategies for adopting technology and profitability. The supply chain business managers' leadership strategies are essential in achieving the corporate objective because a leader's task and relationship behaviors determine sustainability, employee retention, and improved standard of living (Xu & Wang, 2019). Organizations achieve superior performance through employee motivation linked to leadership (Yildiz & Sezen, 2019). New and upcoming supply chain managers may use the findings of this study to understand leadership strategies and how to incorporate transformational leadership traits in their business operations.

Based on the study findings, the most significant contribution to professional practice might be providing a practical model for supply chain managers to develop leadership strategies that align with their firm's corporate strategy for longterm sustainability. Teamwork is essential to a firm's success, hence, the need for leaders to plan, organize, and monitor creative teams tasked with idea generation, exploration, and experimentation (Super, 2020). Effective supply chain technology should connect the present data to past information to facilitate accuracy in predicting the most profitable action (Zekhnini et al., 2020). Al Khajeh (2018) found a correlation between the kind of leadership style and the corporate culture and performance. Supply chain managers should match operational innovation with traceability and supply chain coordination to enhance firms' performance (Shou et al., 2021).

The study findings might add value to the supply chain management community by disseminating information, which could significantly contribute to information sharing and networking. Organizations attain business sustainability by integrating advanced technology and human resources (Hashmi et al., 2018). By aligning supply chain management with big data analytics, business leaders would significantly impact innovative development in their organizations (Bag et al., 2020). The study results could help supply chain managers understand leadership strategies' role in implementing new innovative technology to increase visibility and profitability. Supply chain managers seeking leadership strategies for innovative initiatives may learn from the study findings. Some supply chain managers with weak leadership strategies may apply this study's findings in their organization to build better employee relationships, increasing employee motivation and retention. The study findings could significantly enhance supply chain managers' organizational performance by providing metrics showing operational efficiency and increased productivity.

Implications for Social Change

This study's findings might significantly contribute to the local community's economy. According to Lagumdzija and Ceremida (2019), organizations create shared value between the company and society through stakeholder participation to improve communities' living standards. The profitability of supply chain organizations might increase corporate social responsibility activities, leading to infrastructural and economic development in the rural communities playing host to the companies. The results of this study could contribute towards empowering communities by increasing their skill set. The findings could also enhance the sustainability of supply chain businesses, thus contributing towards increased employment opportunities and enhanced livelihoods of the millions of people that depend on the success of supply chain organizations to survive. Successful warehousing optimization improves employees' lives with better processes, accurate data collection, statistics, location allocation, and information transmission (Deng et al., 2018). By studying this research's outcomes and implementing excellent leadership strategies, supply chain managers might successfully adopt new innovative technology to meet consumer needs.

Profitable supply chain organizations might expand into more rural communities, leading to more employment opportunities, infrastructural and economic development, human capital development, and possibly improving the country's gross domestic product. When implementing a warehouse management system, supply chain businesses could benefit from warehousing by increasing productivity, cost savings, and employee satisfaction (Andiyappillai, 2020). Organizations accomplish their corporate social responsibilities to the local citizens by adopting innovative technology. The corporate social responsibilities might include awards of scholarships, sponsorship of local events, and the building of social amenities such as healthcare, libraries, and schools. The government would benefit from supply chain organizations' improved performance and profitability with more corporate taxes, which the municipal government could use to provide social amenities to the local community.

Recommendations for Action

An effective leadership strategy is fundamental in adopting new innovative technology to increase profitability. I recommend that supply chain managers establish, implement, and maintain influential people management and communication when adopting new innovative technology. To sustain their supply chain businesses, supply chain managers should enhance their leadership style and relationship, coaching, and empowerment skills to increase the likelihood of success in adopting new innovative technology. I recommend that leaders develop skills in people management, effective communication, leadership style, relationship, coaching, and empowerment to stay competitive and profitable.

The study findings indicate that supply chain managers use leadership strategies to drive the successful implementation of technology. It is recommended that supply chain managers develop adequate competency, experience, knowledge, and skills to identify the appropriate leadership strategies for adopting innovative technology. I will disseminate this study's findings to interested groups through presentations at conferences, networks, seminars and training, social media, sharing knowledge in my workplace, and publications in academic and business journals on supply chain management.

Recommendations for Further Study

This qualitative multiple case study explored leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. The study findings, recommendations, and conclusions might contribute to existing and future research and close gaps in business practice regarding leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in adopting new innovative technology. This study was a cross-sectional, exploratory qualitative, multiple case study involving semistructured interviews to collect primary data from business managers from different supply chain companies in Atlanta, Georgia. I recommend that future researchers explore using longitudinal, explanatory qualitative, phenomenological study, quantitative or mixed methods involving diverse participants from varying levels of management and supply chain stakeholders at different geographical locations.

A significant limitation of this study was the small sample size of six business managers from different supply chain companies in Atlanta, Georgia. I recommend further studies with a larger sample size from various geographical locations such as Africa, Asia, and Europe. Further study with larger samples could provide helpful insight into supply chain managers' leadership strategies in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment.

I am a novice in academic research. Hence, my competency, skills, experience, and knowledge of doctoral study are evolving. Consequently, the study was limited to my subjective evaluation and accurate interpretation of the participant's responses to the interview questions. Also, the study was limited to my personal beliefs and professional background with the topic of the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use to adopt new innovative technology. I recommend that future researchers look beyond their beliefs and experience by exploring a diverse data set of lived experiences. Finally, the study was limited to the accuracy of information from the participants and the availability of company archival data. I recommend that future researchers comprise experts from related multi-disciplines in supply chain management to divulge some details I must have omitted in this doctoral study.

Reflections

This qualitative multiple case study aimed to explore leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. To meet the requirements for ethical research and Walden University IRR, I completed the CITI web-based training, which improved my understanding of the obligations for using human beings in the research study. I honestly lost hope as I did not anticipate how stressful the process of completing the research would be. However, the challenges encountered because of my work and life made me prioritize, sacrifice, and organize better to produce quality research, and I finally gained momentum. My administration of semistructured interviews and interactions with the participants improved my self-confidence, communication, networking, emotional intelligence, listening, observation, interpersonal, inspirational, and problem-solving skills. I interviewed the participants at their preferred time and date, which allowed them to express themselves freely and enabled me to gain in-depth knowledge and understanding of the research problem. The organization and data analysis helped me to understand the research problem, identify the themes and patterns, and establish the study findings. Reflecting on my experiences in this study, I can attest to gaining a better understanding of the doctoral study research process with improved skills and competency in conducting academic research work.

From the study findings, I gained an in-depth knowledge of the research problem and how chain managers use a blend of leadership strategies involving people management, communication, leadership style and relationship, and coaching and empowerment. I am excited as I finally complete my DBA program. My new knowledge and understanding of the research problem positively changed my personal bias, perceptions, preconceived beliefs, ideas, and values.

Summary and Study Conclusions

Supply chain managers face challenges in using effective leadership strategies in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment. This qualitative multiple case study used transformational leadership theory to explore the leadership strategies that supply chain managers use in their organization to achieve longterm sustainability. The sources of secondary data include company archival documents and field notes. The four themes that emerged from the thematic analysis of data were: (a) people management, (b) communication, (c) leadership style and relationship, and (d) coaching and empowerment. By implementing leadership strategies, supply chain managers could adopt new innovative technology and stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment, thereby generating economic growth for local communities. With enhanced business sustainability, supply chain managers would pay more corporate taxes, which local and state governments could use to provide social amenities to the local citizens. By ensuring their organizations' competitiveness and sustainability, supply chain managers would continue to offer job opportunities to the regional communities. The use of transformational leadership theory as a lens for this study involving supply chain managers may fill a gap in the literature on supply chain management. The study findings align with previous scholars' conclusions regarding the need to implement effective leadership strategies in adopting new innovative technology to stay competitive in the rapidly changing global business environment.

References

Abdalla, M. M., Oliveira, L. G. L., Azevedo, C. E. F., & Gonzalez, R. K. (2018). Quality in qualitative organizational research: Types of triangulations as a methodological alternative. *Administration: Teaching and Research*, 19, 66-98. <u>https://doi.org/10.13058/raep.2018.v19n1.578</u> Abdallah, A., Alfar, N., & Alhyari, S. (2021). The effect of supply chain quality management on supply chain performance: The indirect roles of supply chain agility and innovation. *International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics Management*, 51(7), 785-812. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijpdlm-01-2020-0011</u>

 Aburaya, R., & Gomaa, Y. A. (2020). Philosophical assumptions, methodological choices and research design: E-learners versus non e-learners. 2020 Sixth International Conference on E-Learning (Econf), 374-380. https://doi.org/10.1109/econf51404.2020.9385478

Abutabenjeh, S. (2018). Clarification of study design, study methods, and study methodology: A guide for public administration researchers and practitioners.
 Teaching Public Administration, 36, 237-258.

https://doi.org/10.1177/0144739418775787

- Adashi, E. Y., Walters, L. B., & Menikoff, J. A. (2018). The Belmont Report at 40: Reckoning with time. *American Journal of Public Health*, 108(10), 1270-1270. https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6137767/
- Adeoye-Olatunde, O. A., & Olenik, N. L. (2021). Research and scholarly methods: Semistructured interviews. *Journal of the American College of Clinical Pharmacy*, 4(10), 1358-1367.

https://accpjournals.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/epdf/10.1002/jac5.1441

Adnan, S. N. S. M., & Valliappan, R. (2019). Communicating shared vision and leadership styles towards enhancing performance. *International Journal of Productivity and Performance*,.

https://www.emerald.com/insight/content/doi/10.1108/IJPPM-05-2018-0183/full/html

- Agrawal, P., & Narain, R. (2018). Digital supply chain management: An overview. *IOP Conference Series: Materials Science and Engineering*, 455, 012074. <u>https://doi.org/10.1088/1757-899x/455/1/012074</u>
- Ahmad, A. F., & Karadas, G. (2021). Managers' perceptions regarding the effect of leadership on organizational performance: Mediating role of green supply chain management practices. SAGE Open, 11(2),.

https://doi.org/10.1177/21582440211018686

Aizpurua, J. I., Papadopoulos, Y., & Merle, G. (2020). Explicit modelling and treatment of repair in prediction of dependability. *IEEE Transactions on Dependable and Secure Computing*, 17(6), 1147-1162.

https://doi.org/10.1109/TDSC.2018.2857810

- Alam, M. (2020). A systematic qualitative case study: questions, data collection, NVivo analysis and saturation. *Qualitative Research in Organizations and Management:* An International Journal, 16(1), 1-31. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/qrom-09-2019-1825</u>
- Al Khajeh, E. H. (2018). Impact of leadership styles on organizational performance. Journal of Human Resources Management Research, 1-10.

https://doi.org/10.5171/2018.687849

- Al-Haddad, S., & Kotnour, T. (2015). Integrating the organizational change literature: A model for successful change. *Journal of Organizational Change Management*, 28(2), 234-262. https://doi.org/10.1108/jocm-11-2013-0215
- Alsmadi, A. A., Alrawashdeh, N., Al-Gasaymeh, A., Alhawamdeh, L. N., &
 Al_Hazimeh, A. M. (2023). Adoption of blockchain technology in supply
 chain. SAGE Open, 13(1). <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/21582440231160143</u>
- Alqatawenah, A. S. (2018). Transformational leadership style and its relationship with change management. *Business: Theory and Practice*, 19(0), 17-24. <u>https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2018.03</u>
- Alrowwad, A., Abualoush, S., & Masa'deh, R. (2020). Innovation and intellectual capital as intermediary variables among transformational leadership, transactional leadership, and organizational performance. *Journal of Management Development*, 39(2), 196-222. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/jmd-02-2019-0062</u>
- Andelkovic, A. & Radosavljevic, M. (2018). Improving order-picking process through implementation of warehouse management system. *Strategic Management*, 23(1), 3-10. https://doi.org/10.5937/straman1801003a
- Andersen, P. H., Dubois, A., & Lind, F. (2018). Process validation: Coping with three dilemmas in process-based single-case research. *Journal of Business & Industrial Marketing*, 33(4), 539-549. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/jbim-07-2016-0152</u>
- Andiyappillai, N. (2020). Factors influencing the successful implementation of the warehouse management system (WMS). *International Journal of Computer Applications*, 177(32), 21-25. <u>https://doi.org/10.5120/ijca2020919787</u>

Antonio, M. G., Schick-Makaroff, K., Doiron, J. M., Sheilds, L., White, L., & Molzahn,
A. (2020). Qualitative data management and analysis within a data
repository. *Western Journal of Nursing Research*, 42(8), 640-648.
https://doi.org/10.1177/0193945919881706

Arif, S., & Akram, A. (2018). Transformational leadership and organizational performance. SEISENSE Journal of Management, 1(3), 59-75. <u>https://doi.org/10.33215/sjom.v1i3.28</u>

Asbari, M., Santoso, P. B., & Prasetya, A. B. (2020). Political and antidemocratic transformational leadership critics: Is it still relevant? *International Journal of Social, Policy and Law, 1*(1), 12-16.

https://ijospl.org/index.php/ijospl/article/view/10

- Aschauer, W. (2021). The re-figuration of spaces and comparative sociology: Potential new directions for quantitative research. *Forum: Qualitative Social Research*, 22(2), 602-635. <u>https://doi.org/10.17169/fqs-22.2.3739</u>
- Assis, R., & Sagawa, J. (2018). Assessment of the implementation of a warehouse management system in a multinational company of industrial gears and drives. *Gestão & Produção*, 25(2), 370-383. <u>https://doi.org/10.1590/0104-530x3315-18</u>
- Atan, J., Hasnaa, N., & Mahmood, N. (2019). The role of transformational leadership style in enhancing employees' competency for organization performance.
 Management Science Letters, 13(2), 21-29.
 https://doi.org/10.5267/j.msl.2019.7.033

- Aten, J. D., & Denney, R. M. (2019). Qualitative research in psychology. In Salem press encyclopedia of health. 291-295. Salem Press
- Attaran, M. (2020). Digital technology enablers and their implications for supply chain management. Supply Chain Forum: An International Journal, 21(3), 158-172. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/16258312.2020.1751568</u>
- Axson, S. A., Giordano, N. A., Ulrich, C. M., & Hermann, R. M. (2019). Evaluating nurse understanding and participation in the informed consent process. *Nursing Ethics*, 26(4), 1050-1061. https://doi.org/10.1177/0969733017740175
- Bag, S., Wood, L., Xu, L., Dhamija, P., & Kayikci, Y. (2020). Big data analytics as an operational excellence approach to enhance sustainable supply chain performance. *Resources, Conservation and Recycling*, 153, 104559. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.resconrec.2019.104559</u>
- Bagais, O., & Aljaaidi, K. (2020). Empirical investigation of the associations of technological capability, logistics capability and supply chain management strategies with competitive advantage: Evidence from Saudi manufacturers. *Uncertain Supply Chain Management*, 799-804. https://doi.org/10.5267/j.uscm.2020.6.007
- Barrett, D., & Twycross, A. (2018). Data collection in qualitative research. *Evidence-Based Nursing*, 21(1), 63-64. <u>https://doi.org/10.1136/eb-2018-102939</u>
- Barwise, A., Sharp, R., & Hirsch, J. (2019). Ethical tensions resulting from interpreter involvement in the consent process. *Ethics & Human Research*, 41(4), 31-35. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/eahr.500025</u>

Bashan, B., & Holsblat, R. (2017). Reflective journals as a research tool: The case of student teachers' development of teamwork. *Cogent Education*, 4(1), . https://doi.org/10.1080/2331186x.2017.1374234

Bedi, P., Upreti, K., Rajawat, A. S., Shaw, R. N., & Ghosh, A. (2021). Impact analysis of industry 4.0 on real time smart production planning and supply chain management. 2021 IEEE 4th International Conference on Computing, Power, and Communication Technologies (GUCON).
https://doi.org/10.1109/gucon50781.2021.9573563

Belhadi, A., Mani, V., Kamble, S., Khan, S., & Verma, S. (2021). Artificial intelligencedriven innovation for enhancing supply chain resilience and performance under the effect of supply chain dynamism: An empirical investigation. *Annals of Operations Research*, . <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10479-021-03956-x</u>

Benseddik, H. (2019). The supply chain management, factor for the creation of customer value: Large-sized business in Morocco as a case study. *International Colloquium* on Logistics and Supply Chain Management (LOGISTIQUA), 1-6. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/LOGISTIQUA.2019.8907249</u>

Bergeron, D. A., & Gaboury, I. (2020). Challenges related to the analytical process in realist evaluation and latest developments on the use of NVivo from a realist perspective. *International Journal of Social Research Methodology: Theory & Practice*, 23(3), 355-365. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2019.1697167</u>

Bhise, D., & Sunnapwar, V. (2019). Developing framework for the implementation of advanced manufacturing technologies in small and medium-sized enterprises.

International Journal of Applied Management and Technology, 18(1), 88-110. https://doi.org/10.5590/IJAMT.2018.18.1.07

- Birasnav, M., & Bienstock, J. (2019). Supply chain integration, advanced manufacturing technology, and strategic leadership: An empirical study. *Computers & Industrial Engineering*, 130, 142-157. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.2019.01.021</u>
- Blossey, G., Eisenhardt, J., & Hahn, G. (2019). Blockchain technology in supply chain management: An application perspective. <u>https://aisel.aisnet.org/hicss-52/os/impact_of_blockchain/6/</u>
- Bohan, J., & Kellam, L. (2021). Preparing a data archive or repository for changing research data and materials retention policies. *Journal of Escience Librarianship*, 10(4), 1216-1221. <u>https://doi.org/10.7191/jeslib.2021.1216</u>
- Borycz, J. (2021). Implementing data management workflows in research groups through integrated library consultancy. *Data Science Journal*, 20(9), 1-9. <u>https://doi.org/10.5334/dsj-2021-009</u>
- Boukamcha, F. (2019). The effect of transformational leadership on corporate entrepreneurship in Tunisian SMEs. *Leadership & Organization Development Journal*, 40(3), 286-304. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/lodj-07-2018-0262</u>

Braaten, B., Kramer, A., Henderson, E., Kajfez, R., & Dringenberg, E. (2020). Accessing complex constructs: Refining an interview protocol. 2020 IEEE Frontiers in Education Conference (FIE), 2020 IEEE, 1-3. https://doi.org/10.1109/FIE44824.2020.9274260

- Brear, M. (2019). Process and outcomes of a recursive, dialogic member checking approach: A project ethnography. *Qualitative Health Research*, 29(7), 944-957. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1049732318812448</u>
- Brown, A., & Danaher, P. A. (2019). CHE principles: Facilitating authentic and dialogical semi-structured interviews in educational research. *International Journal of Research & Method in Education*, 42(1), 76-90. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/1743727x.2017.1379987</u>
- Burns, J. M (1978). *Leadership*.: Harper and Row.
- Busetto, L., Wick, W., & Gumbinger, C. (2020). How to use and assess qualitative research methods. *Neurological Research and Practice*, 2(14), 1-10. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s42466-020-00059-z</u>
- Çakır, M., Li, Q., & Yang, X. (2020). COVID-19 and fresh produce markets in the United States and China. *Applied Economic Perspectives and Policy*, 43(1), 341-354. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/aepp.13136</u>
- Campbell, S., Greenwood, M., Prior, S., Shearer, T., Walkem, K., Young, S., Bywaters,
 D., & Walker, K. (2020). Purposive sampling: Complex or simple? Research case examples. *Journal of Research in Nursing*, *25*(8), 652-661.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/1744987120927206

Caretta, M. A., & Pérez, M. A. (2019). When participants disagree: Member checking and challenges to epistemic authority in participatory research. *Field Methods*, *31*, 359-374. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1525822X19866578</u> Carreiro, H., & Oliveira, T. (2019). Impact of transformational leadership on the diffusion of innovation in firms: Application to mobile cloud computing. *Computers in Industry*, *107*, 104-113.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compind.2019.02.006

Castleberry, A., & Nolen, A. (2018). Thematic analysis of qualitative study data: Is it as easy as it sounds? *Currents in Pharmacy Teaching and Learning*, 10, 807-815. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cptl.2018.03.019</u>

- Cavaleri, S., & Shabana, K. (2018). Rethinking sustainability strategies. Journal of Strategy and Management, 11(1), 2-17. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/jsma-08-2016-0050</u>
- Caycho-Rodríguez, T., Rojas-Jara, C., Ventura-León, J., Noe-Grijalva, M., Cabrera-Orosco, I., & Reyes-Bossio, M. (2021). Single item to assess for worry for cancer: Initial evidence of validity and reliability: *Enfermería Clínica (English Edition)*, 31(4), 203-210. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.enfcle.2019.11.002</u>
- Chemweno, P., Pintelon, L., Muchiri, P. N., & Van Horenbeek, A. (2018). Risk assessment methodologies in maintenance decision making: A review of dependability modelling approaches. *Reliability Engineering & System Safety*, *173*, 64-77. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ress.2018.01.011</u>
- Chen, L., Jia, F., Li, T., & Zhang, T. (2021). Supply chain leadership and firm performance: A meta-analysis. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 235, 108082. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijpe.2021.108082</u>

Chesser, S., Porter, M. M., & Tuckett, A. G. (2019). Cultivating citizen science for all: Ethical considerations for research projects involving diverse and marginalized populations. *International Journal of Social Research Methodology*, 1-12. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2019.1704355</u>

Clayton, E. W. (2020). What should we be asking of informed consent? The Journal of Law, Medicine & Ethics: A Journal of the American Society of Law, Medicine & Ethics, 48(1), 185-187. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1073110520917009</u>

Collingridge, D. S., & Gantt, E. E. (2019). The quality of qualitative study. American Journal of Medical Quality, 34, 439-445. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1062860619873187</u>

Collins, C. S., & Stockton, C. M. (2018). The central role of theory in qualitative research. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 17(1), 1-10.

https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406918797475

Corlett, S., & Mavin, S. (2018). *Reflexivity and researcher positionality. The SAGE handbook of qualitative business and management research methods.* Sage Publications

Cubellis, L., Schmid, C., & von Peter, S. (2021). Ethnography in health services research: Oscillation between theory and practice. *Qualitative Health Research*, *31*(11), 2029-2040. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/10497323211022312</u>

Cumyn, A., Ouellet, K., Côté, A.-M., Francoeur, C., & St-Onge, C. (2019). Role of researchers in the ethical conduct of research: A discourse analysis from different stakeholder perspectives. *Ethics & Behavior*, 29(8), 621-636.

https://doi.org/10.1080/10508422.2018.1539671

- Cypress, B. S. (2017). Rigor or reliability and validity in qualitative study: Perspectives, strategies, reconceptualization, and recommendations. *Dimensions of Critical Care Nursing*, *36*, 253-263. <u>https://doi.org/10.1097/DCC.00000000000253</u>
- Cypress, B. S. (2019). Qualitative research: Challenges and dilemmas. *Dimensions of Critical Care Nursing*, *38*(5), 264-270.

https://doi.org/10.1097/DCC.00000000000374

Da Silva, V., Kovaleski, J., & Pagani, R. (2018). Technology transfer in the supply chain oriented to industry 4.0: A literature review. *Technology Analysis & Amp; Strategic Management*, 31(5), 546-562.

https://doi.org/10.1080/09537325.2018.1524135

Davies, S. E. H. (2020). The introduction of research ethics review procedures at a university in South Africa: Review outcomes of a social science research ethics committee. *Research Ethics Review*, 16(11), 1-26.

https://doi.org/10.1177/1747016119898408

- Deng, M., Mao, J., & Gan, X. (2018). Development of automated warehouse management system. *MATEC Web Of Conferences*, 232. <u>https://doi.org/10.1051/matecconf/201823203051</u>
- Denzin, N. K., & Lincoln, Y. S. (2018). *The Sage handbook of qualitative research* (5th ed.). Sage.

- Devlin, A. (2018). The role of compensation in clinical study and the ethical considerations (Walden Doctoral dissertation). ProQuest Dissertations and Theses database. (UMI No. 5611539)
- Dibaba, A. T. (2021). Lake Qooqa as a narrative: Finding meanings in social memory: A narrative inquiry. *Humanities*, *10*(77), 1-34. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/h10020077</u>
- Dikko, M. (2016). Establishing construct validity and reliability: Pilot testing of a qualitative interview for research in Takaful (Islamic insurance). *The Qualitative Report*, 21(1), 521-528. <u>https://nsuworks.nova.edu/tqr/vol21/iss3/6</u>
- DiVaio, A., & Varriale, L. (2020). Blockchain technology in supply chain management for sustainable performance: Evidence from the airport industry. *International Journal of Information Management*, 52, .

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0268401219304803

Donkor, F., & Zhou, D. (2020). Organizational commitment influences on the relationship between transactional and laissez- faire leadership styles and employee performance in the Ghanaian public service environment. *Journal of Psychology in Africa*, 30(1), 30-36.

https://doi.org/10.1080/14330237.2020.1712808

- Donkor, J., Donkor, G., & Kwarteng, C. (2018). Strategic planning and performance of SMEs in Ghana. Asia Pacific Journal of Innovation and Entrepreneurship, 12(1), 62-76. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/apjie-10-2017-0035</u>
- Draper, C. F., Duisters, K., Weger, B., Chakrabarti, A., Harms, A. C., Harms, A. C., Brennan, L., Hankemeire, T., Goulet, L., Konz, T., Martin, F. J., Moco, S., &

Greef, J. V. D. (2018). Menstrual cycle rhythmicity: Metabolic patterns in healthy women. *Scientific Reports*, 8(1), 1-15. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598–018–32647–0</u>

Draper, J., Liu, Y., & Young, L. (2021). Research methods, data collection, and data analysis in meetings, expositions, events, and conventions journals. *Journal of Convention & Event Tourism*, 22(5), 429-447.

https://doi.org/10.1080/15470148.2021.1906373

- Drysdale, T. (2020). Research data management in a cultural heritage organisation. *International Journal of Digital Curation*, 14(1), 1-29. <u>https://doi.org/10.2218/ijdc.v14i1.647</u>
- Dubey, R., Gunasekaran, A., Childe, S. J., Blome, C., & Papadopoulos, T. (2019). Big data and predictive analytics and manufacturing performance: Integrating institutional theory, resource-based view and big data culture. *British Journal of Management*, 30(2), 341-361. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-8551.12355</u>
- Dutta, P., Choi, T., Somani, S., & Butala, R. (2020). Blockchain technology in supply chain operations: Applications, challenges, and research opportunities.
 Transportation Research Part E: Logistics and Transportation Review, 142.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tre.2020.102067
- Ellis, P. (2019). The language of research (part 20): Understanding the quality of a qualitative paper (2). Wounds UK, 15(1), 110-111. <u>https://www.wounds-uk.com/journals</u>

- Engward, H., & Goldspink, S. (2020). Lodgers in the house: Living with the data in interpretive phenomenological analysis research. *Reflective Practice*, 21(1), 41-53. https://doi.org/10.1080/14623943.2019.1708305
- Ererdi, C., & Unluaslan Durgun, E. (2020). Conceptual review of leadership on organizational performance. Business & Management Studies: An International Journal, 8(1), 1044-1095. <u>https://doi.org/10.15295/bmij.v8i1.1336</u>
- Farquhar, J., Michels, N., & Robson, J. (2020). Triangulation in industrial qualitative case study research: Widening the scope. *Industrial Marketing Management*, 87, 160-170. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.indmarman.2020.02.001</u>

Faupel, S., & Süß, S. (2019). The effect of transformational leadership on employees during organizational change: An empirical analysis. *Journal of Change Management*, 19(3), 145-166. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/14697017.2018.1447006</u>

FitzPatrick, B. (2019). Validity in qualitative health education research. *Currents in Pharmacy Teaching and Learning*, *11*(2), 211-217.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cptl.2018.11.014

Florczak, K. L. (2017). Adding to the truth of the matter: The case for qualitative research. *Nursing Science Quarterly*, *30*, 296-299.

https://doi:10.1177/08943184177244

Fofana, F., Bazeley, P., & Regnault, A. (2020). Applying a mixed methods design to test saturation for qualitative data in health outcomes research. *PLoS ONE*, 15(6), 1-12. <u>https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0234898</u>

- Ford, E. (2020). Tell me your story: Narrative inquiry in LIS research. College & Research Libraries, 81(2), 235-247. <u>http://www.ala.org/</u>
- Fusch, P., Fusch, G. E., & Ness, L. R. (2018). Denzin's paradigm shift: Revisiting triangulation in qualitative research. *Journal of Social Change*, 10(1), 19-32. <u>https://doi.org/10.5590/JOSC.2018.10.1.02</u>
- Godwin, A., Benedict, B., Rohde, J., Thielmeyer, A., Perkins, H., Major, J., Clements, H., & Chen, Z. (2021). New epistemological perspectives on quantitative methods: An example using topological data analysis. *Studies in Engineering Education*, 2(1), 16-34. <u>https://doi.org/10.21061/see.18</u>
- Guest, G., Namey, E., & Chen, M. (2020). A simple method to assess and report thematic saturation in qualitative research. *PLoS ONE*, 15(5), 1-17. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0232076
- Guillemin, M., Barnard, E., Allen, A., Stewart, P., Walker, H., Rosenthal, D., & Gillam,
 L. (2018). Do research participants trust researchers or their institution? *Journal* of Empirical Research on Human Research Ethics, 13(3), 285-294.
 https://doi.org/10.1177/1556264618763253
- Guo, J., Pan, J., Guo, J., Gu, F., & Kuusisto, J. (2019). Measurement framework for assessing disruptive innovations. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 139, 250-265. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2018.10.015</u>
- Gurtu, A., & Johny, J. (2019). Potential of blockchain technology in supply chain management: A literature review. *International Journal of Physical Distribution*

& Amp; Logistics Management, 49(9), 881-900. https://doi.org/10.1108/ijpdlm-11-2018-0371

- Gyimah, N. (2020). Assessing technological innovation on education in the world of coronavirus (COVID-19). SSRN Electronic Journal. <u>https://doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.3670389</u>
- Harif, M. A. A. M., & Hoe, M. K. A. (2018). Critical success determinants of clientserver hardware system adoption: Malaysian SME business context. *Review of Integrative Business and Economics Study*, 7(1), 65-80.

http://buscompress.com/journal-home.html

Harari, L., & Lee, C. (2021). Intersectionality in quantitative health disparities research:A systematic review of challenges and limitations in empirical studies. *Social Science & Medicine*, 277, 113876.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.socscimed.2021.113876

- Harper, R., Ward, L., & Silburn, K. (2020). The sum of us. Implementing a person centered care bundle: A narrative inquiry. *Applied Nursing Research*, 55, 1-5. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apnr.2020.151276</u>
- Hashmi, P., Ansari, N., & Ahsanullah, A. (2018). Leadership initiative to attain business sustainability: Reorienting strategies to meet the needs of globalization. *Asia Proceedings of Social Sciences*, 2(3), 229-233.

https://doi.org/10.31580/apss.v2i3.438

- Hemming, L., Pratt, D., Bhatti, P., Shaw, J., & Haddock, G. (2021). Involving an individual with lived-experience in a co-analysis of qualitative data. *Health Expectations*, 24(3), 766-775. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/hex.13188</u>
- Hjertstrand, J., Palmgren, P., Axén, I., & Eklund, A. (2021). The Nordic maintenance care program: Patient experience of maintenance care: A qualitative study. *Chiropractic & Manual Therapies, 29*(1), 1-14. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s12998-021-00388-z</u>
- Holloway, C., Morgado Ramirez, D., Bhatnagar, T., Oldfrey, B., Morjaria, P., & Moulic, S. (2021). A review of innovation strategies and processes to improve access to AT: Looking ahead to open innovation ecosystems. *Assistive Technology*, *33*, 68-86. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/10400435.2021.1970653</u>
- Huttunen, R., & Kakkori, L. (2020). Heidegger's theory of truth and its importance for the quality of qualitative research. *Journal of Philosophy of Education*, 54(3), 600-616. <u>https://www.philosophy-of-education.org/jope/</u>
- Iivari, N. (2018). Using member checking in interpretive research practice; A hermeneutic analysis of informants' interpretation of their organizational realities. *Information Technology & People*, 31(1), 111-133. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ITP-07-2016-0168</u>
- Jensen, M., Potocnik, K., & Chaudhry, S. (2020). A mixed-methods study of CEO transformational leadership and firm performance. *European Management Journal*, 38(6), 836-845. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.emj.2020.05.004</u>

Johnson, J. L., Adkins, D., & Chauvin, S. (2020). A review of the quality indicators of

rigor in qualitative research. *American Journal of Pharmaceutical Education*, 84(1), 138-146. <u>https://doi.org/10.5688/ajpe7120</u>

Kaewkungwal, J., & Adams, P. (2019). Ethical consideration of the research proposal and the informed-consent process: An online survey of researchers and ethics committee members in Thailand. *Accountability in Research*, 26(3), 176-197. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/08989621.2019.1608190</u>

- Kaiser, K. A., Brown, A. W., & Allison, D. B. (2018). Issues with data and analyses: Errors, underlying themes, and potential solutions. *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences*, 115, 2563-2570. <u>https://doi.org/10.1073/pnas.1708279115</u>
- Karagiozis, N. (2018). The complexities of the researcher's role in qualitative study: The power of reflexivity. *The International Journal of Interdisciplinary Educational Studies*, 13, 19-31. <u>https://doi.org/10.18848/2327–011X/CGP/v13i01</u>
- Kaur, H., Singh, S., Garza-Reyes, J., & Mishra, N. (2020). Sustainable stochastic production and procurement problem for resilient supply chain. *Computers & Amp; Industrial Engineering*, 139. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cie.201</u>8.12.007
- Kazakov, R., Howick, S., & Morton, A. (2021). Managing complex adaptive systems: A resource/agent qualitative modelling perspective. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 290(1), 386-400.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ejor.2020.08.007

Khan, M., Haleem, A., & Khan, S. (2018). Defining halal supply chain management. Supply Chain Forum: An International Journal, 19(2), 122-131. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/16258312.2018.1476776</u>

- Kibbe, M. R. (2019). Leadership theories and styles. *In Leadership in Surgery* (27-36). Springer, Cham. <u>https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-030-19854-1_3</u>
- Kim, H., Sefcik, J. S., & Bradway, C. (2017). Characteristics of qualitative descriptive studies: A systematic review. *Research in Nursing & Health*, 40(1), 23-42. https://doi.org/10.1002/nur.21768
- Knechel, N. (2019). What's in a sample? Why selecting the right research participants matters. *Journal of Emergency Nursing*, *45*(3), 332-334.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jen.2019.01.020

- Korstjens, I., & Moser, A. (2018). Series: Practical guidance to qualitative research. Part
 4: Trustworthiness and publishing. *European Journal of General Practice, 24*,
 125 120-124. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/13814788.2017.1375092</u>
- Kraft, S. A., Duenas, D. M., Kublin, J. G., Shipman, K. J., Murphy, S. C., & Shah, S. K. (2019). Exploring ethical concerns about human challenge studies: A qualitative study of controlled human malaria infection study participants' motivations and attitudes. *Journal of Empirical Research on Human Research Ethics*, 14(1), 49-60. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1556264618820219</u>
- Kurzhals, C., Graf, V., & König, A. (2020). Strategic leadership and technological innovation: A comprehensive review and research agenda. *Corporate Governance: An International Review*, 28(6), 437-464.

https://doi.org/10.1111/corg.12351

Kusi-Sarpong, S., Gupta, H., & Sarkis, J. (2018). A supply chain sustainability innovation framework and evaluation methodology. *International Journal of*

Production Research, *57*(7), 1990-2008.

https://doi.org/10.1080/00207543.2018.1518607

Labib, R. M., Hassanain, O., Alaa, M., Ahmed, S., & Abou El-Naga, S. (2018). Planning today for tomorrow's research: Analysis of factors influencing participation in a pediatric cancer research biorepository. *Frontiers in Oncology*, 7, 1-6. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fonc.2017.00324</u>

- Lagorio, A., Zenezini, G., Mangano, G., & Pinto, R. (2020). A systematic literature review of innovative technologies adopted in logistics management. *International Journal of Logistics Research and Applications*, 1-24. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/13675567.2020.1850661</u>
- Lagumdžija, Z., & Čeremida, L. (2019). From charity and socially responsible to shared value companies from shareholder and state to stakeholder capitalism. *Sarajevo Business & Economics Review (Zbornik Radova)*, 37, 158-175.
 http://www.efsa.unsa.ba/ef/sites/default/files/zbornik 37 2019.pdf#page=158
- Lanka, E., Lanka, S., Rostron, A., & Singh, P. (2021). Why we need qualitative research in management studies. RAC - *Revista De Administração Contemporânea*, 25(2), 1-7. <u>https://doi.org/10.1590/1982-7849rac2021200297.en</u>
- Larkin, M., Shaw, R., & Flowers, P. (2018). Multiperspectival designs and processes in interpretative phenomenological analysis research. *Qualitative Research in Psychology*, 16(2), 182-198. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/14780887.2018.1540655</u>
- Lee, A., Lyubovnikova, J., Tian, A. W., & Knight, C. (2018). Servant leadership: A meta-analytic examination of incremental contribution, moderation, and

mediation. *Journal of Occupational and Organizational Psychology*, 93(1), 1-44. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/joop.12265</u>

Lee, R. (2021). The effect of supply chain management strategy on operational and financial performance. *Sustainability*, *13*(9), . <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/su13095138</u>

Liao, H., & Hitchcock, J. (2018). Opined credibility techniques in higher education evaluation studies that use qualitative methods: A research synthesis. *Evaluation* and Program Planning, 68, 157-165.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.evalprogplan.2018.03.005

- Lindlof, T. R., & Tylor, B. C. (2019). Sensemaking I: Analyzing, coding, and managing data. *Qualitative Communication Research Methods* (4th ed.). Sage.
- Lowe, A., Norris, A. C., Farris, A. J., & Babbage, D. R. (2018). Quantifying thematic saturation in qualitative data analysis. *Field Methods*, 30, 191-207. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1525822X17749386</u>
- Lücker, F., Seifert, R. W., & Biçer, I. (2019). Roles of inventory and reserve capacity in mitigating supply chain disruption risk. *International Journal of Production Research*, 57(4), 1238-1249. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/00207543.2018.1504173</u>
- Luthra, S., & Mangla, S. (2018). When strategies matter: Adoption of sustainable supply chain management practices in an emerging economy's context. *Resources, Conservation and Recycling, 138,* 194-206.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.resconrec.2018.07.005

- Madill, A., & Sullivan, P. (2018). Mirrors, portraits, and member checking: Managing difficult moments of knowledge exchange in the social sciences. *Qualitative Psychology*, 5, 321-339. https://doi.org/10.1037/qup0000089
- Magalhães, L. (2019). Evaluation of the reliability and validity of the Brazilian version of the here's how I write: A child's self-assessment and goal setting tool. *American Journal of Occupational Therapy*, 73(2), 1-10. <u>https://ajot.aota.org/</u>

Mangla, S., Kusi-Sarpong, S., Luthra, S., Bai, C., Jakhar, S., & Khan, S. (2020).
 Operational excellence for improving sustainable supply chain performance. *Resources, Conservation and Recycling*, *162*.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.resconrec.2020.105025

Marshall, C., & Rossman, G. B. (2016). Designing qualitative research. Sage.

McCrea, B. (2020). The ongoing convergence of cloud and supply chain software: How software as a service (SaaS) took over the supply chain software market, where it stands now, and how far we have to go before the supply chain is truly autonomous. *Logistics Management (Highlands Ranch, Co.), 59*(9), 46-50 <u>https://www.scmr.com/article/the_ongoing_convergence_of_cloud_and_logistics_supply_chain_software</u>

McGrath, C., Palmgren, P. J., & Liljedahl, M. (2019). Twelve tips for conducting qualitative research interviews. *Medical Teacher*, 41(9), 1002-1006. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/0142159X.2018.1497149</u>

Meier, M., & Pinto, E. (2020). Covid-19 supply chain disruptions. *Covid Economics*, 48, 139-170. <u>https://matthias-meier-econ.github.io/files/MeierPinto_Disruptions.pdf</u>

- Merriam, S. B., & Grenier, R. S. (Eds.). (2019). *Qualitative study in practice: Examples* for discussion and analysis. John Wiley & Sons
- Mohsin, S., Zoya, Z., Lei, X. S, & Sarker, M. N. I. (2020). The effects of transformational leadership on employee creativity: Moderating role of intrinsic motivation. *Asia Pacific Management Review*, 25(3), 166-176. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.apmrv.2019.12.002
- Mokgolo, M., & Barnard, A. (2019). Buridan's ass syndrome: Dilemma of the human resources practitioner in workplace bullying. *South African Journal of Human Resource Management*, 17(1), 1-11. <u>https://doi.org/10.4102/sajhrm.v17i0.1124</u>
- Mokhtar, A. R. M., Genovese, A., Brint, A., & Kumar, N. (2019). Improving reverse supply chain performance: The role of supply chain leadership and governance mechanisms. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, *216*, 42-55.
 https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0959652619300526
- Moon, M. D. (2019). Triangulation: A method to increase validity, reliability, and legitimation in clinical research. JEN: Journal of Emergency Nursing, 45(1), 103-105. <u>https://www.jenonline.org/</u>
- Moser, A., & Korstjens, I. (2018). Series: Practical guidance to qualitative study. Part 3:
 Sampling, data collection, and analysis. *European Journal of General Practice*, 24(1), 9-18. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/13814788.2017.1375091</u>
- Mostafa, N., Hamdy, W., & Elawady, H. (2020). An intelligent warehouse management system using the internet of things. *Egyptian Journal for Engineering Sciences* and Technology, 32(1), 59-65. <u>https://doi.org/10.21608/eijest.2020.42338.1009</u>

Mpofu, F. Y. (2021). Addressing the saturation attainment controversy: Evidence from the qualitative research on assessing the feasibility of informal sector taxation in Zimbabwe. *Technium Social Sciences Journal*, *19*(1), 607-630.
 https://techniumscience.com/index.php/socialsciences/article/view/3307

Muhlroth, C., & Grottke, M. (2022). Artificial intelligence in innovation: How to spot emerging trends and technologies. *IEEE Transactions on Engineering Management*, 69(2), 493-510. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/tem.2020.2989214</u>

- Mukherjee, S., & Chittipaka, V. (2022). Analysing the adoption of intelligent agent technology in food supply chain management: An Empirical Evidence. *FIIB* Business Review, 11(4), 438–454. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/23197145211059243</u>
- Naidoo, S., Hewitt, M., & Bussin, M. (2019). A leadership model validation: Dimensions influential to innovation. South African Journal of Business Management, 50(1), <u>https://doi.org/10.4102/sajbm.v50i1.1294</u>

Nandasinghe, G. (2020). Leadership and organization performance: A review on theoretical and empirical perspectives. *Global Journal of Management and Business Research*, 25-30. <u>https://doi.org/10.34257/gjmbravol20is4pg25</u>

National Commission for the Protection of Human Subjects in Biomedical and Behavioral Research (1979). *The Belmont Report: Ethical principles and* guidelines for the protection of human subject's research.

http://www.hhs.gov/ohrp/humansubjects/guidance/belmont.html

Nguyen, H. M., Mai, L. T., & Huynh, T. L. (2019). The role of transformational leadership toward work performance through intrinsic motivation: A study in the

pharmaceutical field in Vietnam. *The Journal of Asian Finance, Economics and Business*, 6(4), 201-212. <u>https://doi.org/10.13106/jafeb.2019.vol6.no4.201</u>

- Nielsen, M., Skogstad, A., Gjerstad, J., & Einarsen, S. (2019). Are transformational and laissez-faire leadership related to state anxiety among subordinates? A two-wave prospective study of forward and reverse associations. *Work & Amp; Stress*, 33(2), 137-155. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/02678373.2018.1528307</u>
- Nilmanat, K., & Kurniawan, T. (2021). The quest in case study research. Pacific Rim International Journal of Nursing Research, 25(1), 1-6. <u>https://he02.tci-thaijo.org/index.php/PRIJNR</u>
- Noble, H., & Heale, R. (2019). Triangulation in research, with examples. *Evidence Based Nursing*, 22(3), 67-68. <u>https://doi.org/10.1136/ebnurs-2019-103145</u>
- Nordhagen, S., Igbeka, U., Rowlands, H., Shine, R., Heneghan, E., & Tench, J. (2021). COVID-19 and small enterprises in the food supply chain: Early impacts and implications for longer-term food system resilience in low- and middle-income countries. *World Development*, 141,

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.worlddev.2021.105405

- Northouse, P. G. (2019). *Leadership: Theory and practice* (8th ed.). Thousand Oaks, Sage
- Nowell, L. S., Norris, J. M., White, D. E., & Moules, N. J. (2017). Thematic analysis: Striving to meet the trustworthiness criteria. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 16(1), 1-13. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406917733847</u>

- Odiri, A. V. (2019). Awareness and use of data triangulation among university students in Rivers State, Nigeria. *Education Quarterly Reviews*, 2(2), 299-304. <u>https://www.asianinstituteofresearch.org/</u>
- Oh, J., & Jeong, B. (2019). Tactical supply planning in smart manufacturing supply chain. *Robotics and Computer-Integrated Manufacturing*, 55, 217-233. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rcim.2018.04.003</u>
- Omar, I., Jayaraman, R., Debe, M., Salah, K., Yaqoob, I., & Omar, M. (2021). Automating procurement contracts in the healthcare supply chain using blockchain smart contracts. *IEEE Access*, 9, 37397-37409. <u>https://doi.org/10.1109/access.2021.3062471</u>
- Orr, S., & Jadhav, A. (2018). Creating a sustainable supply chain: The strategic foundation. *Journal of Business Strategy*, 39(6), 29-35. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/jbs-11-2017-0157</u>
- Pane, S., Awangga, R., & Azhari, B. (2018). Qualitative evaluation of RFID implementation on warehouse management system. *Telkomnika* (*Telecommunication Computing Electronics and Control*), 16(3), . <u>https://doi.org/10.12928/telkomnika.v16i3.8400</u>
- Para-González, L., Jiménez-Jiménez, D., & Martínez-Lorente, A. R. (2018). Exploring the mediating effects between transformational leadership and organizational performance. *Employee Relations*, 40(2), 412-432. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/er-10-2016-0190</u>

Pathiranage, Y. L., Jayatilake, L. V. K., & Abeysekera, R. (2020). Case study research design for exploration of organizational culture towards corporate performance. *Review of International Comparative Management / Revista de Management Comparat International*, 21(3), 361-372.

https://doi.org/10.24818/RMCI.2020.3.361

- Peterson, J. S. (2019). Presenting a qualitative study: A reviewer's perspective. *Gifted Child Quarterly*, 63(3), 147-158. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/0016986219844789</u>
- Peu, M., Mulaudzi, F., Rikhotso, S., Ngunyulu, R., & Rasweswe, M. (2020). Reflections on accessing indigenous research settings: Encounters with traditional health practitioners and leaders in Vhembe district, South Africa. *Culture & Psychology*, 27(2), 227-242. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1354067x20971249</u>.
- Poghosyan, L., & Bernhardt, J. (2018). Transformational leadership to promote nurse practitioner practice in primary care. *Journal of Nursing Management*, 26(8), 1066-1073. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jonm.12636</u>
- Prabhu, M., & Srivastava, A. K. (2022). Leadership and supply chain management: A systematic literature review. *Journal of Modelling in Management*, . <u>https://www.emerald.com/insight/content/doi/10.1108/JM2-03-2021-</u>0079/full/html
- Prabowo, T. S., Noermijati, N., & Irawanto, D. W. (2018). The influence of transformational leadership and work motivation on employee performance mediated by job satisfaction. *Jurnal Aplikasi Manajemen*, *16*(1), 171-178. <u>https://doi.org/10.21776/ub.jam.2018.016.01.20</u>

- Puni, A., Mohammed, I., & Asamoah, E. (2018). Transformational leadership and job satisfaction: The moderating effect of contingent reward. *Leadership & Organization Development Journal*, *39*(4), 522-537. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/lodj-11-2017-0358</u>
- Purwanto, A., & Juliana, J. (2022). The effect of supplier performance and transformational supply chain leadership style on supply chain performance in manufacturing companies. *Uncertain Supply Chain Management*, 10(2), 511-516. https://doi.org/10.5267/j.uscm.2021.12.001
- Rajaguru, R., & Matanda, M. (2019). Role of compatibility and supply chain process integration in facilitating supply chain capabilities and organizational performance. *Supply Chain Management: An International Journal*, 24(2), 301-316. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/scm-05-2017-0187</u>
- Rapciewicz, G., & Buresh, D. (2021) The current Chinese global supply chain monopoly and the Covid-19 pandemic. *International Journal of Coronaviruses*, 2(3), 38-52. <u>https://doi.org/10.14302/issn.2692-1537.ijcv-21-3720</u>
- Rehman Khan, S. A., Ahmad, Z., Sheikh, A. A., & Yu, Z. (2022). Digital transformation, smart technologies, and eco-innovation are paving the way toward sustainable supply chain performance. *Science Progress*, 105(4),

https://doi.org/10.1177/00368504221145648
- Rejeb, A., Keogh, J. G., & Treiblmaier, H. (2019). Leveraging the internet of things and blockchain technology in supply chain management. *Future Internet*, 11(7), 161. https://www.mdpi.com/500420
- Riese, J. (2018). What is 'access' in the context of qualitative study? *Qualitative Study*. Advance online publication. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1468794118787713</u>
- Robert, V., & Vandenberghe, C. (2020). Laissez-faire leadership and affective commitment: The roles of leader-member exchange and subordinate relational self-concept. *Journal of Business and Psychology*, *36*(4), 533-551. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10869-020-09700-9
- Rutberg, S., & Bouikidis, C. D. (2018). Focusing on the fundamentals: A simplistic differentiation between qualitative and quantitative research. *Nephrology Nursing Journal*, 45(2), 209-213. <u>https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/30303640/</u>
- Sahara, C., & Aamer, A. (2021). Real-time data integration of an internet-of-things-based smart warehouse: A case study. *International Journal of Pervasive Computing* and Communications, . <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijpcc-08-2020-0113</u>
- Sánchez-Flores, R., Cruz-Sotelo, S., Ojeda-Benitez, S., & Ramírez-Barreto, M. (2020). Sustainable supply chain management: A literature review on emerging economies. *Sustainability*, *12*(17), . <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/su12176972</u>
- Sarkis, J. (2020). Supply chain sustainability: Learning from the COVID-19 pandemic. International Journal of Operations & Amp; Production Management, 41(1), 63-73. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijopm-08-2020-0568</u>

- Saunders, B., Sim, J., Kingstone, T., Baker, S., Waterfield, J., Bartlam, B., Burroughs, H., & Jinks, C. (2018). Saturation in qualitative research: Exploring its conceptualization and operationalization. *Quality & Quantity*, 52(4), 1893-1907. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11135-017-0574-8
- Saunders, M. N. K., Lewis, P., & Thornhill, A. (2015). *Research methods for business students* (7th ed.): Pearson Education Limited.
- Schoemaker, P., Heaton, S., & Teece, D. (2018). Innovation, dynamic capabilities, and leadership. *California Management Review*, 61(1), 15-42. https://doi.org/10.1177/0008125618790246
- Schuckert, M., Kim, T. T., Paek, S., & Lee, G. (2018). Motivate to innovate: How authentic and transformational leaders influence employees' psychological capital and service innovation behavior. *International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management*, 30(2), 776-796. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijchm-05-2016-0282</u>
- Searcy, C., Castka, P., Mohr, J., & Fischer, S. (2022). Transformational transparency in supply chains: Leveraging technology to drive radical change. *California Management Review*, 65(1), 19–43. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/00081256221126204</u>

Sebele-Mpofu, F. Y., & Serpa, S. (2020). Saturation controversy in qualitative research: Complexities and underlying assumptions. A literature review. *Cogent Social Sciences*, 6(1), 1-15. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/23311886.2020.1838706</u>

Seeram, E. (2019). An overview of correlational research. *Radiologic Technology*, 91(2), 176-179. <u>http://www.radiologictechnology.org/content/91/2/176.extract</u>

Shaheen, I., Azadegan, A., Hooker, R., & Lucianetti, L. (2019). Leadership for mitigating ripple effects in supply chain disruptions: A paradoxical role. In *Handbook of Ripple Effects in the Supply Chain* (pp. 101-128). Springer, Cham. https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-030-14302-2_5

Shou, Y., Zhao, X., Dai, J., & Xu, D. (2021). Matching traceability and supply chain coordination: Achieving operational innovation for superior performance. *Transportation Research Part E: Logistics and Transportation Review*, 145, . <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tre.2020.102181</u>

- Shrestha, M. B., & Bhatta, G. R. (2018). Selecting appropriate methodological framework for time series data analysis. *The Journal of Finance and Data Science*, 4(2), 71-89. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jfds.2017.11.001</u>
- Siangchokyoo, N., Klinger, R. L., & Campion, E. D. (2020). Follower transformation as the linchpin of transformational leadership theory: A systematic review and future research agenda. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 31(1), 101341. <u>https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S1048984318308464</u>
- Siedlecki, S. L. (2020). Case study research design in nursing. *Clinical Nurse* Specialist, 34(6), 250-256. <u>https://doi.org/10.1097/NUR.00000000000554</u>

Siegner, M., Hagerman, S., & Kozak, R. (2018). Going deeper with documents: A systematic review of the application of extant texts in social research on forests. *Forest Policy & Economics*, 92, 128-135.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.forpol.2018.05.001

Silverman, D. (Ed.). (2016). Qualitative research. Sage.

Sivasubramaniam, S., Dlabolová, D. H., Kralikova, V., & Khan, Z. R. (2021). Assisting you to advance with ethics in research: An introduction to ethical governance and application procedures. *International Journal for Educational Integrity*, 17(1), 1-18. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s40979-021-00078-6</u>

Slettebø, T. (2021). Participant validation: Exploring a contested tool in qualitative research. *Qualitative Social Work*, 20(5), 1223-1238. https://doi.org/10.1177/1473325020968189

- Srinivasan, M., Hamdani, M., & Ma, S. (2021). Four supply chain management systems: From supply chain strategies to human resource management. *Business Horizon*, 64, 249-260. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bushor.2020.11.006</u>
- Stenfors, T., Kajamaa, A., & Bennett, D. (2020). How to assess the quality of qualitative research. *The Clinical Teacher*, 17(6), 596-599. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/tct.13242</u>
- Stoecker, R., & Avila, E. (2021). From mixed methods to strategic research design. International Journal of Social Research Methodology: Theory & Practice, 24(6), 627-640. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2020.1799639</u>
- Strijker, D., Bosworth, G., & Bouter, G. (2020). Research methods in rural studies:
 Qualitative, quantitative, and mixed methods. *Journal of Rural Studies*, 78, 262-270. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jrurstud.2020.06.007</u>
- Stutterheim, S. E., & Ratcliffe, S. E. (2021). Understanding and addressing stigma through qualitative research: Four reasons why we need qualitative studies. *Stigma and Health*, 6(1), 8-19. <u>https://doi.org/10.1037/sah0000283</u>

Sulieman, A. (2018). Transformational leadership style and its relationship with change management. *Business Theory & Practice*, *19*(4), 17-24.

https://doi.org/10.3846/btp.2018.03

Swierczek, A., & Szozda, N. (2019). Demand planning as a tamer and trigger of operational risk disruptions: Evidence from the European supply chains. *Supply Chain Management: An International Journal*, 24 (6), 748-766. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/scm-03-2019-0095</u>

Tarigan, Z., Jiputra, J., & Siagian, H. (2021). The effect of supply chain practices on retailer performance with information technology as moderating variable. *International Journal of Data and Network Science*, 47-54. <u>https://doi.org/10.5267/j.ijdns.2020.11.003</u>

Tarofder, A., Jawabri, A., Haque, A., Azam, S., & Sherief, S. (2019). Competitive advantages through IT-enabled supply chain management (SCM) context. *Polish Journal of Management Studies*, 19(1), 464-474.

https://doi.org/10.17512/pjms.2019.19.1.35

Tavana, M., Shaabani, A., Raeesi Vanani, I., & Kumar Gangadhari, R. (2022). A review of digital transformation on supply chain process management using text mining. *Processes*, 10(5), 842. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/pr10050842</u>

Theofanidis, D., & Fountouki, A. (2018). Limitations and delimitations in the research process. *Perioperative Nursing*, 7(3), 155-163. https://doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.2552022

- Tian, M., Deng, P., Zhang, Y., & Salmador, M. (2018). How does culture influence innovation? A systematic literature review. *Management Decision*, 56(5), 1088-1107. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/md-05-2017-0462</u>
- Tomaszewski, L. E., Zarestky, J., & Gonzalez, E. (2020). Planning qualitative research: Design and decision making for new researchers. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 19(4), 1-7. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406920967174</u>
- Tong, A., & Dew, M. A. (2016). Qualitative study in transplantation: Ensuring relevance and rigor. *Transplantation*, 100(4), 710-712. https://doi.org/10.1097/TP.000000000001117
- Top, C., Abdullah, B. M. S., & Faraj, A. H. M. (2020). Transformational leadership impact on employees' performance. *1*(1), .

https://doi.org/10.23918/ejmss.v1i1p49

Uslu, O. (2019). General overview to leadership theories from a critical perspective. *Marketing and Management of Innovations*, 161-172. <u>https://doi.org/10.21272/mmi.2019.1-13</u>

Vasilescu, M. (2019). Leadership styles and theories in an effective management activity. Annals-Economy Series, 4, 47-52. <u>https://utgjiu.ro/revista/ec/pdf/2019-04/06_Vasilescu.pdf</u>

Vereecke, A., Vanderheyden, K., Baecke, P., & Van Steendam, T. (2018). Mind the gap;
Assessing maturity of demand planning, a cornerstone of S & amp;
OP. International Journal of Operations & Amp; Production Management, 38(8),
1618-1639. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijopm-11-2016-0698</u>

- Watts, L. L., Steele, L. M., & Den Hartog, D. N. (2019). Uncertainty avoidance moderates the relationship between transformational leadership and innovation: A meta-analysis. *Journal of International Business Studies*, 51(1), 138-145. https://doi.org/10.1057/s41267-019-00242-8
- Wicaksono, R. B., Ferine, M., Dwi Lestari, D. W., Hidayah, A. N., & Muhaimin, A.
 (2021). Experience of Indonesian medical students of ethical issues during their clinical clerkship in a rural setting. *Journal of Medical Ethics & History of Medicine*, 14(6), 1-16. <u>https://jmehm.tums.ac.ir/index.php/jmehm</u>
- Wong, C. A., Song, W. B., Jiao, M., O'Brien, E., Ubel, P., Wang, G., & Scales, C. D. (2021). Strategies for research participant engagement: A synthetic review and conceptual framework. *Clinical Trials*, *18*(4), 457-465. https://doi.org/10.1177/17407745211011068
- Xu, A., Baysari, M. T., Stocker, S. L., Leow, L. J., Day, R. O., & Carland, J. E. (2020).
 Researchers' views on, and experiences with, the requirement to obtain informed consent in research involving human participants: A qualitative study. *BMC Medical Ethics*, *21*(1), 93-103. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12910-020-00538-7
- Xu, F., & Wang, X. (2019). Transactional leadership and dynamic capabilities: The mediating effect of regulatory focus. *Management Decision*, 57(9), 2284-2306. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/md-11-2017-1151</u>
- Yang, H., & Yang, J. (2018). The effects of transformational leadership, competitive intensity, and technological innovation on performance. *Technology Analysis &*

Amp; Strategic Management, 31(3), 292-305.

https://doi.org/10.1080/09537325.2018.1498475

- Yarney, L., Adzimah-Yeboah, B., Domfeh, K. A., & Aboagye, A. Q. Q. (2021).
 Balancing academia with clinical proficiency in the training of nurses at the university level: The case of Ghana. *International Journal of Nursing Education*, 13(1), 85-93. <u>https://doi.org/10.37506/ijone.v13i1.13321</u>
- Yeong, M. L., Ismail, R., Ismail, N. H., & Hamzah, M. I. (2018). Interview protocol refinement: Fine-tuning qualitative research interview questions for multi-racial populations in Malaysia. *The Qualitative Report*, 23(11), 2700-2713. <u>https://nsuworks.nova.edu/tqr/vol23/iss11/7/</u>
- Yildiz Çankaya, S., & Sezen, B. (2019). Effects of green supply chain management practices on sustainability performance. *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*, 30(1), 98-121. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/jmtm-03-2018-0099</u>
- Yildiz, E. P. (2020). Opinions of academicians on digital literacy: A phenomenology study. *Cypriot Journal of Educational Sciences*, 15(3), 469-478. <u>https://doi.org/10.18844/cjes.v15i3.4913</u>
- Yin, J., Ma, Z., Yu, H., Jia, M., & Liao, G. (2019). Transformational leadership and employee knowledge sharing: Explore the mediating roles of psychological safety and team efficacy. *Journal of Knowledge Management*, 24(2), 150-171. https://doi.org/10.1108/jkm-12-2018-0776
- Yin, R. K. (2018). *Case study research and applications: Design and methods* (6th ed.). Sage.

Yu, Y., Huo, B., & Zhang, Z. (2021). Impact of information technology on supply chain integration and company performance: Evidence from cross-border e-commerce companies in China. *Journal of Enterprise Information Management*, 34(1), 460-489. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/jeim-03-2020-0101</u>

Yunis, M., Tarhini, A., & Kassar, A. (2018). The role of ICT and innovation in enhancing organizational performance: The catalysing effect of corporate entrepreneurship. *Journal of Business Research*, 88, 344-356.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2017.12.030

- Zaman, U., Nawaz, S., Tariq, S., & Humayoun, A. (2019). Linking transformational leadership and "multi-dimensions" of project success. *International Journal of Managing Projects in Business*, 13(1), 103-127. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijmpb-10-</u> 2018-0210
- Zekhnini, K., Cherrafi, A., Bouhaddou, I., Benghabrit, Y., & Garza-Reyes, J. (2020). Supply chain management 4.0: A literature review and research framework. *Benchmarking: An International Journal*, 28(2), 465-501. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/bij-04-2020-0156</u>
- Zhu, J., Song, L. J., Zhu, L., & Johnson, R. E. (2019). Visualizing the landscape and evolution of leadership research. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 30(2), 215-232. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.leaqua.2018.06.003</u>
- Zimon, D., Madzik, P., & Sroufe, R. (2019). Management systems and improving supply chain processes. *International Journal of Retail & Amp; Distribution Management*, 48(9), 939-961. <u>https://doi.org/10.1108/ijrdm-04-2019-0107</u>

Zong, H., Yang, J., Zhang, Z., Li, Z., & Zhang, X. (2021). Semantic categorization of Chinese eligibility criteria in clinical trials using machine learning methods. BMC Medical Informatics & Decision Making, 21(1), 1-12. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12911-021-01487-w

Zunic, E., Delalic, S., Hodzic, K., Besirevic, A., & Hindija, H. (2018). Smart warehouse management system concept with implementation. Symposium on Neural Networks and Applications (NEUREL).

https://doi.org/10.1109/neurel.2018.8587004

Zyphur, M. J., & Pierides, D. C. (2020). Statistics and probability have always been value-laden: An historical ontology of quantitative research methods. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 167(1), 1-18. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10551-019-04187-8</u>

Appendix A: Interview Protocol

- Set the qualification parameters: (a) business managers from different supply chain companies in Atlanta Georgia that have successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technologies in their companies. (b) referral to an organization implementing innovative technologies.
- 2. Make a list of potential participants with their email addresses.

Approach volunteers

- 1. Send an email outlining the program.
- Identify participants, and secure 5 participants from eligible volunteers.
 Consent form

- 1. Send the consent form to willing participants.
- 2. Collect the returned emails and store emails in their specific file.
- 3. A follow-up call to confirm the information on the consent form, provide interview questions, address any concerns, and schedule the interview.
- 4. Assign the appropriate codes to each participant.

Interview

- 1. Kick off the Zoom or Teams meeting.
- 2. Greet the participant.
- 3. Ensure the technology is working (turn on audio recorder/Zoom recording/ test for accuracy, ask if they have any pre-interview questions).
- 4. Discuss the availability of additional documents.
- 5. Begin the interview.
- 6. List each interview question.
- 7. Complete the interview, asking if there is anything else; extend thanks.
- 8. Turn off the audio recorder/Zoom recorder and exit the Zoom meeting
- 9. Complete the audio recording.
- 10. Set the member checking interview date.

Post-interview

- 1. Transcribe the data through NVivo.
- 2. Summarize the interview information.
- 3. Follow up interview with the participant to member check the interview information.

Appendix B: Letter of Invitation

Dear Sir/Madam,

As part of my doctoral research at Walden University, I invite you to participate in a research study to explore leadership strategies supply chain managers use in adopting innovative technology. The findings of this study may help business owners identify leadership strategies for adopting innovative strategies that managers within supply chain management organizations can use to increase profitability. The participants for this study shall be supply chain managers in Atlanta, Georgia, who have successfully used leadership strategies to adopt innovative technology.

The mode of data collection shall be via telephone and other social media channels, including Zoom, Teams, and email. Additional follow-on questions, if necessary, will be recorded for accuracy via email, phone, or video teleconferencing services. The survey duration could take anywhere from 15 minutes to 1 hour, depending on how in-depth the participant wants to go into each question. All data collected will be confidential, and your participation in the study is voluntary. 24 hours after I complete the interview transcription, I will send you a summary email and request a response within three days if revisions are needed.

Enclosed with this letter is the Participant Consent Form. If you are interested in participating in the study, kindly review the form carefully and send an email with the words "I consent." If you need any clarifications about the study, you may contact Bukola Olowo via phone at 347 261 8920 or email me at bukola.olowo@waldenu.edu Your participation will contribute to the success of the proposed study and could stimulate interest among supply chain managers in the United States in appropriate leadership strategies for adopting innovative technology.

Sincerely,

Bukola Olowo

Appendix C: CITI Certification

CITI PROGRAM	Completion Date 17-Oct-2022 Expiration Date NVA Record ID 52163599
This is to certify that:	Fl 🥠 y
Bukola Olowo	
Has completed the following CITI Program course:	Not valid for renewal of certification through CME.
Student's (Curriculum Group) Doctoral Student Researchers	
(Course Learner Group) 1 - Basic Course (Stage)	CITI
Under requirements set by:	
Walden University	fol account in the all fairing otherse
	101 Mil 3rd Avenue, Suite 320 Fort Lauderdale, PL 33381 US even chiprostram.org